
 

Listing of Mailout Material 
May 19, 2021 

 
 Forwarding Letter 
 Meeting Agenda 

 
I. Review and approve minutes of the meeting of April 21, 2021 

 Minutes of April 21, 2021 
 

II. Hamline University Series 2021 
 Hamline University Series 2021 Application (excluding exhibits) 
 Application Review – North Slope Capital Advisors 
 Application Memorandum – Fryberger 
 Resolution Relating to Application - Fryberger 

 
III. FY2021 Proposed Adjusted Budget 

 FY2021 Proposed Adjusted Budget 
  

IV. FY2021 Achievement Awards 
 FY2021 Plan of Action Results 
 FY2021 Achievement Award Resolution 

 
V. FY2022 Administrative Items 

 FY2022 Proposed Board Meeting Schedule 
 FY2022 Proposed Plan of Action 

 
VI. Old Business 

 
VII. New Business 

 
VIII. Other Business 

 US Births Future Effect on Higher Education (Chronicle of Higher Education) 
 April 2021 Budget vs Actual 

 
IX. Executive Session 

 Executive Director Annual Performance Review (to be provided separately) 



MEMORANDUM   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Date:  12 May 2021 
 
To:  Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority Board Members 
 
From:  Barry W. Fick, Executive Director 
 
Subject: May 19, 2021 Authority Board Meeting Preview 
 
Greetings to the Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority May 19, 2021 video and 
teleconference Board meeting. The focus of the May 2021 Board meeting will be the Application of 
Hamline University for re-financing the Series Seven-N2 Note and financing a pair of new money 
projects. 
 
We will also review a proposed adjusted Fiscal Year 2021 Budget and the Fiscal Year 2021 
Achievement Awards. We will consider some Fiscal Year 2022 administrative items and elect Board 
officers for the coming fiscal year. 
 
Finally, we will have an Executive Session to review the job performance of the Executive Director.  
 
We will use our video link system for this meeting. Instructions for accessing the video link are 
available in this email. 
 
According to Executive Order issued by the Governor, endorsed and updated by MMB, we are 
working from home until at least June 30, 2021. We do make occasional visits to the office. 
 
We look forward to your participation by video conferencing or telephone for the meeting. 
 

380 JACKSON STREET, SUITE 450, ST. PAUL, MN  55101 

Main Phone: 651.296.4690       Fax: 651.297.5751 



Meeting to be conducted via video conference – Board Members will receive a link to join the meeting 

General Public may attend via call-in number:  1-877-978-6969   Access Code: 866-830-615#   

MHEFA, 380 Jackson Street, Suite 450, Saint Paul, MN  55101.  Telephone: 651-296-4690 

 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 

 
Wednesday, May 19, 2021 

2:00 PM 
 

Meeting to be held via electronic means due to pandemic emergency social distancing.  
 The public should utilize the call-in information provided below.  

Individuals may request reasonable accommodation or modifications in order to participate in Authority 
programs by contacting the Authority at least 48 hours in advance of the event. 

 
I. Review and approve minutes of the meeting of April 21, 2021 

II. Hamline University 

 Conduct Public Hearing 
 Application Review – North Slope Capital Advisors 
 Application Memorandum by Bond Counsel – Fryberger 
 Resolution Relating to Application – Fryberger 

 
III. FY2021 Proposed Adjusted Budget 

IV. FY2021 Achievement Awards 

V. FY2022 Administrative Items 

 FY2022 Board Meeting Schedule 
 FY2022 Board Officer Election 
 FY2022 Proposed Plan of Action 

VI. Old Business 

VII. New Business 

 



Meeting to be conducted via video conference – Board Members will receive a link to join the meeting 

General Public may attend via call-in number:  1-877-978-6969   Access Code: 866-830-615#   

MHEFA, 380 Jackson Street, Suite 450, Saint Paul, MN  55101.  Telephone: 651-296-4690 

VIII. Other Business 

 Executive Director’s Report 

IX. Executive Session 

 Executive Director Annual Performance Review 



 

The Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority (the “Authority” or “MHEFA”) convened a 
regular Board meeting at 2:00 pm Central Time, Wednesday, April 21, 2021.  
 
Following Emergency Executive Order 20-01, dated March 13, 2020, Declaration of Peacetime 
Emergency by Governor Walz; Emergency Executive Order 20-20, dated March 25, 2020; and 
Emergency Executive Order 20-33, dated April 8, 2020 (the foregoing and other Emergency 
Executive Orders of the Governor relating to COVID-19, as may be amended or superseded, 
collectively, the “Emergency Orders”), members of the Authority participated in and attend the 
meeting by telephone or other electronic means in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 
13D.021.  

Authority Chair Ranum determined that an in-person meeting at the regular meeting location for 
the Authority, 380 Jackson Street, Suite 450, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101, was not practical or 
prudent because of the health pandemic declared under the Emergency Orders and according to 
current guidance from the Minnesota Department of Health, the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention, and the U.S. Department of Homeland Security.  

Members of the public who plan to be present at the public hearing at the Authority’s offices in 
person will be required to observe social distancing and comply with other measures imposed by the 
Emergency Orders. 

The public were able to monitor the meeting by calling a toll-free number. 
 
Board members participated in the meeting using a video link. The meeting link was sent to Board 
members prior to the meeting. The use of a video link as an allowable way to hold the Board meeting 
was confirmed by the State of Minnesota’s Data Practices Office staff prior to the meeting, 
following Minnesota Statute 13D.021. 
 
  



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 2 
 
 

Executive Summary – Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 

Meeting on April 21, 2021 

Board Actions Taken: 

Motions: Result: Vote: 
Approval of Meeting Minutes of March 17, 2021 Passed Unanimous 
Motion to pay the legal bill for Covenant Compliance work related 
to COVID-19 issues affecting Authority Bonds legal structure 

Passed Unanimous 

 

Resolutions Result: Vote: 
Resolution Relating to Application from Saint John’s University Passed Unanimous – 

one 
abstention 

Resolution Relating to Financing Terms for Saint John’s 
University 

Passed Unanimous – 
one 
abstention 

Series Resolution for Saint John’s University Passed Unanimous – 
one 
abstention 

Resolution Regarding Authority Bylaw Updates Passed Unanimous 
 
The official meeting began with a roll call to determine who was attending the meeting. The following 
board members or their designees were participating and attending by video link (“V”) or telephone 
(“T”): 
 
Board Members: Gary Benson - V 
   Mary Ives - V 
   Mark Misukanis - T 

Michael Ranum - V 
Bonnie Anderson Rons - V 
David Rowland - V 
Nancy Sampair - V 
Poawit Yang – T 
Ray Vin Zant - V 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 3 
 
 

Paul Cerkvenik, Minnesota Private College Council, ex officio w/o vote - V 
 
Absent:  None 
    
Other Attendees: Richard Adamson, VP Finance and Admin., Saint John’s University – V 

Jennifer Meyer, Investment Manager, Saint John’s University – T 
Jeremy Scegura, Assistant Controller, Saint John’s University - T 
Robert Toftey, Bond Counsel, Fryberger Law Firm - T 
Elizabeth Bergman, Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC – V  

 
 
Also Present:  Barry W. Fick Executive Director MHEFA - V 

Amanda Lee, Operations Manager, MHEFA - V 
 

Mike Ranum, Chair, called the meeting order at 2:00 pm CDT. Executive Director Fick confirmed 
that a quorum was present. 
 
Agenda Item I – Minutes of the March 17, 2021 Board meeting. 
 
The first item on the Agenda is the review and consideration of the minutes of the March 17, 2021 
Authority Board meeting.  
 
A motion was made by Ray Vin Zant to approve the March 17, 2021 minutes. The motion was 
seconded by Nancy Sampair. Chair Ranum asked if there were any questions, discussion, or changes 
to the minutes of the March 17, 2021 Board meeting.  Board Member Anderson Rons noted that 
the meeting start time was incorrect on the minutes. The correct starting time of the March 17, 
2021 MHEFA Board meeting should be listed as 2:00 pm CT. There were no further questions or 
proposed changes to the minutes from Board members.  
 
Chair Ranum called for a vote regarding the approval of the minutes. A roll call vote was conducted, 
and the Board members voted as follows:  
 
Board Members: Gary Benson   Yes 
   Mary Ives   Yes 
   Mark Misukanis  Yes 

Michael Ranum  Yes 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 4 
 
 

Bonnie Anderson Rons  Yes 
David Rowland   Yes 
Nancy Sampair   Yes 
Ray Vin Zant   Yes 
Poawit Yang   Yes 
 

There were no votes against the motion and the Minutes (as amended) of the March 17, 2021 
MHEFA Board meetings were approved. 
 
 
Agenda Item II – Saint John’s University Application for Financing 
 
Chair Ranum opened the Public Hearing for Saint John’s University. Executive Director Fick noted 
that Notice for the Saint John’s Public Hearing was published in the Saint Cloud Times and on the 
Authority’s Website in a timely manner and that there were no comments received by the Authority 
prior to the Public Hearing.  
 
Chair Ranum called on Mr. Richard Adamson, Vice President for Finance and Administration at 
Saint John’s University and Ms. Jennifer Meyer, Investment Manager at Saint John’s University to 
present the financing request of the University. Mr. Adamson began by introducing himself and 
noted that he was accompanied by two other Saint John’s University staff who are involved in the 
financing. They are Ms. Jennifer Mayer, Investment Manager and Mr. Jeremy Scegura, Assistant 
Controller.  
 
Mr. Adamson outlined the purpose of the financing and noted that some of the projects to be 
financed have been under consideration since late 2019 but deferred until the effect of COVID-19 
pandemic on the university could be understood. He noted the university has coped successfully with 
the pandemic and the Board has approved moving forward with the projects. The projects to be 
funded with bond proceeds include: 
 

1. the acquisition, construction and equipping of a new 96-bed townhouse style student 
residence facility and demolition of the University’s current Seton Residence Hall; 

2. renovation and upgrades to Peter Engel Science Center; 
3. renovation of the first floor and third floor of Wimmer Hall; 
4. construction of a pedestrian bridge connecting the lower campus and upper campus across 

Stumpf Lake; 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 5 
 
 

5. capital improvement and renovation projects, including a student center (Sexton Commons) 
and student residence facilities (Saint Thomas Aquinas Hall and Saint Mary Hall) (along with 
items (1) (2) (3) and (4) above, is the “Project”); and 

6. pay certain issuance costs. 
 
Mr. Adamson discussed the effect of COVID-19 on the Saint John’s community and presented a 
graph showing the number of cases among students, staff, and faculty. He noted that the university 
successfully managed the pandemic and had low numbers of cases overall, with a minimal number of 
increases or spikes of cases. 
 
Mr. Adamson reviewed the financial performance of the University in light of the pandemic for the 
Board. He also discussed enrollment, investment performance, gifts, and contributions. He noted 
that the assistance of the federal government aid has been very helpful. He concluded by noting that 
Saint John’s has successfully dealt with COVID-19 and plans to remain vigilant against COVID-19 
going forward. 
 
Chair Ranum asked if there were questions from Board members.  Gary Benson asked if Seton hall 
has to be torn down to make room for the new residence hall and how that will affect bed space. Mr. 
Adamson replied that it will need to be torn down, but they have additional bed space in a few other 
buildings. Mary Ives clarified that the Science Building is already completed and asked if that meant 
that Saint John’s is seeking reimbursement for that project. Mr. Adamson replied that yes, the Science 
Building renovation is complete and that this portion is a reimbursement. Nancy Sampair asked 
whether Saint John’s is in a capital campaign. Mr. Adamson responded that they are in a silent phase 
of a capital campaign. Nancy Sampair asked when there will be a public announcement of the 
campaign. Mr. Adamson replied that it will likely be within the next year, but their fundraising efforts 
are very focused on growing their endowment currently. Nancy Sampair asked what the University’s 
plan and strategy for online and virtual courses is moving forward. Mr. Adamson replied that they see 
Saint John’s University as a residential, face-to-face institution. However, faculty and students have 
become more accustomed to the technology, so it’s possible that some changes may remain once the 
University returns to a normal 3-4 course at a time, face-to-face schedule in the fall. 
 
Chair Ranum asked if Board members had any additional questions for Mr. Adamson. There were no 
other questions.  
 
Mr. Ranum closed the public hearing and asked Ms. Elizabeth Bergman, Director at Baker Tilly 
Municipal Advisors to provide the Board with an analysis of the financial effect of the application by 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 6 
 
 
the University. Ms. Bergman reviewed the Application Analysis prepared by Baker Tilly. She referred 
Board members to the Application analysis and noted that there is no debt service reserve, and there 
is a negative pledge on two of the buildings. She noted that these buildings cannot be used as 
collateral for any other financing, and that is the reason for the negative pledge.  
 
Ms. Bergman noted that in the professional opinion of Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors the projects 
appear fiscally feasible and a bond with adequate security can be structured.  
 
Ms. Bergman concluded her presentation and asked if Board members had questions. There were no 
questions from Board members. 
 
Mr. Ranum next asked Mr. Robert Toftey, Esq. from the Fryberger law firm, serving as bond counsel 
for the Saint John’s financing, to review Bond Counsel’s Application Memorandum. Mr. Toftey 
directed the Board’s attention to the Application of Saint John’s for MHEFA Financing 
Memorandum, dated April 14, 2021. Mr. Toftey noted that the memo represents Bond Counsel’s 
findings from their review of the Saint John’s Application for financing. It also notes that certain 
items are missing and need to be provided prior to issuing the bonds. It reviews representations made 
by Saint John’s in their Application and discusses IRS limitations on tax-exempt financed projects, 
noting how those limitations might affect the Saint John’s Project.  
 
Mr. Toftey concluded his presentation and asked if there were questions from Board members. Chair 
Ranum asked for clarification on the relationship of land ownership between the Abbey and the 
University. Mr. Toftey explained that the University owns the land and has a 50-year lease with 5-
year renewal periods with the Abbey. There is an agreement with the order that they won’t terminate 
the lease during the period of which financings on the buildings are outstanding. Wimmer Hall is 
owned by the Abbey, and portions of the building are leased to the university. There were no other 
questions from Board members.  
 
Mr. Ranum then asked Mr. Robert Toftey to review the Resolution Relating to the Application of 
Saint John’s University. Mr. Toftey reviewed the resolution, after which there were no questions 
from the Board. 
 
A motion was made by Gary Benson to approve and accept the Resolution Relating to Application of 
Saint John’s University. The motion was seconded by Mary Ives. Chair Ranum asked if there were 
any questions, discussion, or changes for Mr. Toftey regarding the Resolution. There were no other 
questions for Mr. Toftey related to the Resolution Relating to Application of Saint John’s University. 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 7 
 
 
 
Chair Ranum called for a Roll Call vote regarding the approval and acceptance of the Resolution 
Relating to Application and Financing Terms for Saint John’s University.  A Roll Call vote was 
conducted, and the Board members voted as follows:  
 
Board Members: Gary Benson   Yes 
   Mary Ives   Yes 
   Mark Misukanis  Yes 

Michael Ranum  Abstain* 
David Rowland   Yes 
Bonnie Anderson Rons  Yes 
Nancy Sampair   Yes 
Ray Vin Zant   Yes 
Powait Yang   Yes 
 

* Mr. Ranum abstained to avoid a perception of a conflict of interest. His prior employer is the 
architect of record for components of the projects subject to the bond financing.  
 
There were no votes against the motion and the Resolution Relating to Application of Saint John’s 
University was approved. 
 
Chair Ranum asked Ms. Elizabeth Bergman, Director of Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, to provide 
the Board with an outline of the Preliminary Finance Plan for the Series 2021 Bonds for Saint John’s 
University. Ms. Bergman reviewed the Preliminary Finance Plan prepared by Baker Tilly.  
 
Ms. Bergman reviewed the structure of the Series 2021 Bonds. She noted that the debt service for 
the Series 2021 Bonds is subject to change based on actual rates received at the sale. She noted that 
there is a two-year interest only period to allow completion of construction and revenue from the 
replacement and new beds to be generated to help fund debt service. The size of the bond issue will 
not exceed $25 million. The university has applied for rating on the bonds from Moody’s Investors 
Service. The bonds will pay principal annually on October 1, beginning October 1, 2023 and final 
principal is scheduled for October 1, 2040. Interest will be paid semi-annually on April 1 and 
October 1, beginning October 1, 2021. There is no capitalized interest. The bonds are not subject to 
any financial covenants. The bonds are expected to be subject to redemption on October 1, 2030 
and after.  
 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 8 
 
 
Ms. Bergman noted that there is no debt service reserve associated with the bonds and there is no 
mortgage on university property for the Bonds. The university is not subject to any financial 
covenants on the Series 2021 Bonds but is subject to financial covenants on the Series Eight-H 
Bonds; and the Series Eight-I Bonds that relate to the University’s debt and which may be affected 
by the issuance of additional debt.  The University is in compliance with those covenants and will be 
in compliance with those covenants upon issuing the Bonds. The Series Eight-H and Series Eight-I 
Bond covenants will expire upon final maturity of the respective bonds. 

 
Ms. Bergman reviewed the preliminary debt service for the Series 2021 Bonds shown on Exhibit A of 
the Preliminary Finance Plan. She discussed Exhibit B with the Board, noting that it shows all 
outstanding long-term debt of the University. 
 
Ms. Bergman noted that the Moody’s Credit Rating of A2, Stable Outlook was assigned to the 
outstanding debt of the University in September 2020. A meeting will be held with Moody’s on 
April 27, 2021 for the purpose of obtaining a rating for the Series 2021 Bonds. Moody’s indicated 
that since the Series 2021 Bonds were considered in the assignment of the rating in September 
2020 and no adverse financial information has been presented since then, they do not anticipate a 
change in the credit rating for the Series 2021 Bonds. This would be an affirmation of the current 
Moody’s credit rating on the long-term debt of the university. 
 
Ms. Bergman concluded her presentation and asked if Board members had questions. There were no 
questions from Board members. 
 
Mr. Ranum next asked Mr. Robert Toftey, Esq. from the Fryberger law firm, serving as bond counsel 
for the Saint John’s financing, to review Bond Counsel’s Resolution Relating to Financing Terms for 
Saint John’s University, dated April 14, 2021. Mr. Toftey outlined the components of the Resolution 
Relating to Financing Terms for Saint John’s University.  
 
Mr. Toftey noted that the Resolution reviewed, recited, and affirms the actions taken previously by 
the Board and finance professionals related to the Saint John’s Financing Application.  The 
Resolution further authorizes the preparation and distribution of an Official Statement. The 
Resolution outlines the parameters that the final bond issue must meet, including a not to exceed 
size and a not to exceed true interest cost. The Resolution notes that the Project and the issuance of 
revenue bonds appears feasible. The Resolution also notes that the Authority’s municipal advisor has 
also reviewed the Application and the recommendation of the municipal advisor is approved by the 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 9 
 
 
Resolution. Based on the recommendation of the municipal advisor and bond counsel, the Authority 
is authorized to proceed with the final documentation for the Series 2021 Bonds and direct 
preparation of final documents necessary to market and sell the Series 2021 Bonds. 
 
Mr. Toftey concluded his presentation and asked if there were questions from Board members. There 
were no questions from Board members.  
 
A motion was made by Bonnie Anderson Rons to approve and accept the Resolution Relating to 
Financing Terms for Saint John’s University. The motion was seconded by Ray Vin Zant. Chair 
Ranum asked if there were any questions, discussion, or changes for Mr. Toftey regarding the 
Resolution. There were no other questions for Mr. Toftey related to the Resolution Relating to 
Financing Terms for Saint John’s University. 
 
Chair Ranum called for a Roll Call vote regarding the approval and acceptance of the Resolution 
Relating to Financing Terms for Saint John’s University.  A Roll Call vote was conducted, and the 
Board members voted as follows:  
 
Board Members: Gary Benson   Yes 
   Mary Ives   Yes 
   Mark Misukanis  Yes 

Michael Ranum  Abstain 
David Rowland   Yes 
Bonnie Anderson Rons  Yes 
Nancy Sampair   Yes 
Ray Vin Zant   Yes 
Powait Yang   Yes 
 

There were no votes against the motion and the Resolution Relating to Financing Terms for Saint 
John’s University was approved. 
 
Mr. Ranum then asked Mr. Toftey to review the Series Resolution Relating to the Minnesota Higher 
Education Facilities Authority Refunding and Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (Saint John’s University). 
 
Mr. Toftey directed the Board’s attention to the Series Resolution included in the Board information 
packet. The Resolution includes 12 findings, which Mr. Toftey summarized for the Board. The Series 
Resolution terms recite the description of the project and the public actions taken to issue the 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 10 
 
 
bonds. It outlines the parameters within which the Bonds must be sold for and describes the bond 
documents applicable to the Bonds. The Series Resolution instructs the Authority and its advisors to 
undertake and complete all steps necessary or convenient to carry out the terms and provisions of 
the bond documents and requires no additional resolution by the Authority.   
 
This concluded Bond Counsel’s discussion of the Resolution. Mr. Ranum asked if there were 
questions related to the Resolution from Board members. There were none. 
 
A motion was made by David Rowland to approve and accept the Series Resolution. The motion was 
seconded by Nancy Sampair. Chair Ranum asked if there were any questions, discussion, or changes 
for Mr. Toftey regarding the Resolution. There were no other questions related to the Series 
Resolution of Saint John’s University. 
 
Chair Ranum called for a Roll Call vote regarding the approval and acceptance of the Series 
Resolution. A Roll Call vote was conducted, and the Board members voted as follows:  
 
Board Members: Gary Benson   Yes 
   Mary Ives   Yes 
   Mark Misukanis  Yes 

Michael Ranum  Abstain 
Bonnie Anderson Rons  Yes 
David Rowland   Yes 
Nancy Sampair   Yes 
Ray Vin Zant   Yes 
Poawit Yang   Yes 
 

There were no votes against the motion and the Series Resolution was approved. 
 
Executive Director, Barry Fick, clarified that often the Authority holds two separate meetings for 
the application and financing plan, however because this financing has previously been submitted to 
the Authority and to reduce the risk of exposure to rising interest rates, the process for Saint John’s 
was done in one meeting. The Authority will ask for the Governor to sign the resolution and return 
within a short time to stay on the schedule desired by the University. 
 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 11 
 
 
Chair Ranum allowed the University and other financing team members participating in the Public 
Hearing and the Application Review process to leave the meeting if they would like. All meeting 
participants except for Board Members left the meeting.  
 
Board Member, David Rowland, excused himself from the meeting as well at 3:15 pm due to another 
commitment. 
 
Agenda Item III – Old Business – Bylaw Update 
 
Chair Ranum asked Operations Manager Amanda Lee to discuss and outline the Resolution included 
in the packet that relates to the Board Bylaws.  
 
Amanda reviewed the changes to the Bylaws, noting they implement the previously approved 
changes to Rules of Operation. In addition, as Mark Misukanis noted during the March meeting, 
Article IV, Section 6, it states that the yeas and nays need not be recorded in meeting minutes. A 
brief discussion by the Board in March agreed that this language should be updated, as current 
practice is to use roll call votes instead of voice votes, and yeas and nays are recorded in the minutes. 
The Authority has drafted new language for that piece to be approved in the resolution to amend the 
bylaws at this Authority meeting. 
 
Ms. Lee noted that unlike the Motion which could amend Rules of Operation, the bylaws need to be 
changed through a Resolution process. The Resolution now before the Board reflects the changes. 
 
Mr. Ranum asked if there were other questions related to the Resolution from Board members. 
Bonnie Anderson Rons brought forth a discussion around timing of motions to amend Authority 
bylaws that was entertained by the Board, after which the Board concluded that the language 
included in the Bylaws and Resolution as presented was satisfactory. 
 
A motion was made by Mary Ives to approve and accept the Resolution accepting the Authority 
Bylaw Updates. The motion was seconded by Nancy Sampair. Chair Ranum asked if there were any 
questions, discussion, or changes regarding the Resolution. There were no other questions or changes 
related to the Resolution accepting Authority Bylaw Updates. 
 
Chair Ranum called for a Roll Call vote regarding the approval and acceptance of the Resolution 
accepting Authority Bylaw Updates. A Roll Call vote was conducted, and the Board members voted 
as follows:  



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 12 
 
 
 
Board Members: Gary Benson   Yes 
   Mary Ives   Yes 
   Mark Misukanis  Yes 

Michael Ranum  Yes 
Bonnie Anderson Rons  Yes 
Nancy Sampair   Yes 
Ray Vin Zant   Yes 
Poawit Yang   Yes 
 

There were no votes against the Resolution and the Resolution accepting Authority Bylaw Updates 
was approved. 
 
There was no further old business for consideration or action by the Authority Board. 
 
Agenda Item IV – New Business 
 
Chair Ranum asked Mr. Fick if there was any New Business to be addressed by the Board. Mr. Fick 
responded that the adverse financial effects of COVID-19 on colleges and universities has resulted 
in a number of them being challenged in compliance with Authority mandated financial covenants. 
This issue first arose with Bethel University, but will be an issue for many of its other schools as well. 
An opinion was drafted by McGrann Shea to explain to Bethel’s auditors that Bethel was not out of 
compliance or in default because COVID-19 should fall under the force majeure clause included in 
all of the Authority’s bonds. This opinion can be applied to all of our schools, not just Bethel. Mr. Fick 
requests that the Board fund a portion of the legal fees incurred by McGrann Shea for their work on 
the Bethel issue, with the balance of the legal fee to be paid by Bethel.  
 
After discussion between board members, Nancy Sampair introduced a motion to have the 
Authority pay the entire legal expense instead of having Bethel University absorb some of this 
expense since the work product and analysis is applicable to virtually all of the Authority’s borrower 
schools in this position. She also included that the Authority should draft a letter with the opinion 
included to all of the Authority’s schools. Gary Benson added his support, indicating that if the 
Authority is proactive in this way, it will prevent other schools from facing the same fate and 
potentially hiring their own legal counsel to address the issue when they do not need to incur this 
expense. Paul Cerkvenik expressed his appreciation to the board for looking at the common good of 
all of the schools. Chair Ranum suggested that Paul Cerkvenik should also help notify the schools of 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 13 
 
 
this legal opinion and possibility that auditors may need this opinion to avoid the same hurdles 
experienced by Bethel. 
 
This concluded discussion of the matter and the proposed motion. Mr. Ranum asked if there were 
questions related to the proposed motion from Board members. There were none. 
 
A motion was made by Nancy Sampair for MHEFA to pay the legal costs related to the review of 
Authority Financial Covenant Compliance Waivers due to force majeure exception and the 
COVID-19 Pandemic. The Motion was seconded by Ray Vin Zant. Chair Ranum asked if there were 
any questions, discussion, or changes regarding the Motion. There were no other questions. 
 
Chair Ranum called for a Roll Call vote regarding the approval and acceptance of the Motion. A Roll 
Call vote was conducted, and the Board members voted as follows:  
 
Board Members: Gary Benson   Yes 
   Mary Ives   Yes 
   Mark Misukanis  Yes 

Michael Ranum  Yes 
Bonnie Anderson Rons  Yes 
Nancy Sampair   Yes 
Ray Vin Zant   Yes 
Poawit Yang   Yes 
 

There were no votes against the motion and the Motion to pay the legal services invoice was 
approved. 
 
Chair Ranum asked if there were any other New Business items from Board members for discussion. 
There were no New Business items from Board members for discussion. 
 
Board Member, Ray Vin Zant, excused himself from the meeting at 3:30 pm due to another 
commitment. 
 
Agenda Item V – Other Business 
 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 14 
 
 
Chair Ranum called upon Executive Director Fick to discuss Other Business. Mr. Fick presented his 
Executive Director’s report. It included the following items regarding staff and Authority activity and 
events and personnel changes at the schools. 
 
Legislative Update 

While our legislation has unanimously passed through the Senate Higher Education committee and 
referred to the Health Committee, as we noted in March, due to COVID restrictions, it appeared 
that our legislation would not be considered this session. Senator Carla Nelson has devised an option 
to move our legislation forward. We are working diligently to obtain the requested information to 
allow the legislation to move forward this legislative session. 

If our legislation is not considered this session, we are working with our legislative consultants and 
have developed a plan to work with legislative staff and legislators over the balance of 2021 to 
educate more legislators on our proposal, as well as obtain additional sponsors for the legislation. We 
plan to revive the legislation for the 2022 legislative session. 

 

Borrower Application Update 

• Hamline University is working with US Bank on extension of an existing bank placement and 
modifying the terms to expand the placement amount borrowed. We anticipate submission 
by Hamline of a financing Application by early May. 

 

Building Lease Update 

Preparation of the building for conversion to residential use continues. Our water supply has been 
restored. Our neighbors to the east of our offices are leaving their space. Fewer than ½ dozen 
entities currently maintain space in the building. 

 

Borrower Staffing Update 

Saint John’s University has announced an interim President with a 1-year appointment.  

Saint John’s University and the College of Saint Benedict are moving forward with moving to a 
common President administrative model. They plan to apply to the accrediting organization for 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 15 
 
 
approval of the administrative change in the next few weeks. It is expected the accrediting agency 
will consider the request at their November 2021 meeting. 

 

Board Update 

David Rowland has applied to be reappointed as the MHEFA Board member with expertise in 
municipal finance. We plan to recommend his reappointment to the Governor. 

We are working on recruiting a Board member who is an employee of a college or university to fill 
the Board opening being vacated by Mark Misukanis. We will have more information on that within 
two weeks. 

 

Annual Finance Conference 

The Annual Finance, held virtually this year, was a success. There were 63 participants who listened 
to our panel of presenters on multiple topics. We have received multiple unsolicited positive 
responses and feedback on the quality, professionalism, expertise, and information provided by the 
speakers. 

 
That concluded Mr. Fick’s Executive Director’s report for April 21, 2021. 
 
Ms. Amanda Lee, Operations Manager, provided an update on the work identifying a temporary staff 
position to cover administrative work during Amanda’s maternity leave. Ms. Lee updated the board 
on a candidate Robert Half has identified for a fill-in while she is on maternity leave. Ms. Lee has had 
personal working history with the identified candidate and believes that the candidate would work 
well for the Authority’s needs. The Authority only found out about this candidate from Robert Half 
on April 20 but wanted to update the board at this April meeting. Staff expects to bring the 
negotiated information from Robert Half to the board at the May meeting, just ahead of when the 
candidate would begin training with Amanda. 
 
At the conclusion of the Executive Directors report, Chair Ranum entertained a motion to adjourn 
the general meeting. A motion to adjourn as made by Gary Benson and seconded by Mary Ives. 
 
The Board then voted by voice vote to adjourn at 3:58 pm, Central Daylight Time. 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2021 

Page 16 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       ____________________ 
       Assistant Secretary  











































  

North Slope Capital Advisors 

1165 Delaware Street, Suite 140 

Denver, CO 80204 

303-953-4101 

 

 

May 19, 2021 
 

 

Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 

c/o Mr. Michael D. Ranum, Board Chair 

 and Mr. Barry W. Fick, Executive Director 

380 Jackson Street, Suite 450 

Saint Paul, MN  55101 
 

Dear Mr. Ranum, Mr. Fick, & Authority Board Members: 
 

As the independent registered municipal advisor for the Authority, we are pleased to provide the following 

review of the financing application submitted by Hamline University (the “University”) for assistance from 

the Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) to issue its Series 2021 Revenue Note 

(the “Note”) to: 
 

(1) finance various improvements to the University’s buildings, including bathroom infrastructure 

renovation of Drew Residential Hall and conversion of the North Campus from high pressure steam 

to low pressure steam (the “Project”), 

(2) refinance the remaining outstanding Series 2013 (Seven-Y2) Note1, and 

(3) fund the costs of issuing the Note. 
 

Provided below is a summary of the financing followed by a detailed review of the University’s credit profile, 

the Project, and the proposed financing. 
 

Financing Summary 

Par Amount (Estimated as of 3-9-2021) $9,725,000 

Financing Type New Money and Refunding 

Project Improvement Projects 

Prior MHEFA Bonds/Notes Outstanding (as of 5/1/2021) Series 2017B - $32,520,000 

Series 2017A - $4,645,000 

Series 2013 (Seven-Y2) - $2,975,0001 

Current Underlying Rating Baa3 (Stable) as of 4/23/2021 

Direct Purchase Bank US Bank 

Bond Counsel Fryberger, Buchanan, Smith & Frederick, P.A. 

Issuance Date (Estimated) June 29, 2021 
 

Based on our initial review of the materials provided by the University, as well as the term sheet provided 

by the Direct Purchase Bank, it is North Slope’s opinion that a borrowing in the amount required to achieve 

its purposes is fiscally feasible and that a note with adequate security can be structured.  Accordingly, North 

Slope will be attending the Authority’s meeting on May 19, 2021 to present our review of the University’s 

application and answer any questions. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 

NORTH SLOPE CAPITAL ADVISORS by NORTH SLOPE CAPITAL ADVISORS by 

Steph M. Chichester, President Nick E. Taylor, Managing Director 
 

cc: Ms. Margaret Tungseth, Sr. Vice President of Finance and Administration 

 Ms. Michelle Hegarty, Assistant Vice President of Finance and Administration  

 
1 To be refunded in full by the Note. 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 

Application Review Letter from North Slope Capital Advisors 

for Financing on behalf of Hamline University (Series 2021) 

Date: May 19, 2021 

Page: 1 

 
The University 

 

History 

Hamline University (“Hamline” or the “University”) is a nationally ranked university serving nearly 3,400 

students in its three schools: College of Liberal Arts, School of Education, and School of Business. Founded 

in 1854, Hamline was the first institution of higher learning in Minnesota. During the past 166 years, the 

University has established a national reputation for academic quality, as well as providing students with 

personal attention and exceptional experiences. Located in the vibrant Twin Cities of Saint Paul and 

Minneapolis, Minnesota, Hamline is affiliated with the United Methodist Church, and the University is one 

of only 286 Phi Beta Kappa institutions in the United States.  

 

Hamline is recognized as a diverse, learning-centered university that is rooted in a tradition of liberal 

education: dynamic, and actively inclusive; locally engaged and globally connected; and invested in the 

personal and professional growth of its employees and students. The University has a strong tradition of 

excellence in teaching, research, and scholarship. Among its longstanding values are commitments to 

rigorous academics; creation, dissemination, and practical application of knowledge; multicultural 

competencies; the development and education of the whole person; and an ethic of social justice and civic 

responsibility.  In its Best Regional Universities category, U.S. News and World Report has ranked Hamline 

one of the top-ranked Minnesota universities for the past 19 consecutive years. 

 

Enrollment2  

The University’s total headcount and full-time enrollment trends for the last five fall semesters are reflected 

in the table below.   

 

Fall 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 
      

Headcount 3,113 3,404 3,526 3,734 3,852 

Change (#) (291) (122) (208) (118) (406) 

Change (%) -8.55% -3.46% -5.57% -3.06% -9.54% 
      

FTE 2,698 2,850 2,899 3,036 3,106 

Change (#) (152) (49) (137) (70) (288) 

Change (%) -5.33% -1.69% -4.51% -2.25% -8.49% 

 

The University is focused on the student enrollment decline and is working to stabilize and increase 

enrollment, in part as shown by the residence hall improvements to be funded with proceeds of the Series 

2021 Note.  A representative of the University will participate in the Board meeting and be able to provide 

additional information on student enrollment plans. 

 

Summary of Financial Operations  

Despite revenue pressure driven by enrollment declines, the University has consistently maintained 

balanced operations and steady operating cash flow margins over the last several years.  Fiscal year 2020 

operating results remained strong with a total change in total net assets (with and without donor 

restrictions) of just over $7.4 million due to expense adjustments, CARES Act funding and strong gift 

support.  According to the budget information provided by the University, a slight positive operating margin 

is expected for fiscal year 2021.   

 
2 Source:  https://emma.msrb.org/P21440401-P21118294-P21529504.pdf   

https://emma.msrb.org/P21440401-P21118294-P21529504.pdf


Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 

Application Review Letter from North Slope Capital Advisors 

for Financing on behalf of Hamline University (Series 2021) 

Date: May 19, 2021 

Page: 2 

 
 

Provided in Appendix A is a Statement of Activities and Change in Net Assets for the University’s two prior 

fiscal years ending June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 which presents information about the University’s 

operating activities derived from the audited financial statements. 

 

Summary of Financial Position  

The University maintains good liquidity with over 107 days cash on hand as of fiscal year 2020 due to 

increased total cash and investments over the last five years from positive operating cash flow margins.  

Over the same five-year period, the University has decreased its liabilities by over 11% and increased its 

unrestricted net assets by almost 62%. 
 

 
 

Provided in Appendix B is Statements of Financial Position for the University’s prior five fiscal years ending 

June 31, 2020 thru June 31, 2016 which presents information about the University’s assets, liabilities and net 

assets derived from the audited financial statements. 

 

Summary of Outstanding Debt 

As of May 1, 2021, the University had $40,140,000 of outstanding debt as summarized below.  
 

Outstanding Debt 

Series Issue Date Original Principal Outstanding Principal Mode 

Series 2017B December 6, 2017 $    34,650,000 $    32,520,000 Fixed Rate 

Series 2017A June 30, 2017     6,726,000     4,645,000 Fixed Rate 

Series 2013 (7-Y2) September 30, 2013     6,210,000         2,975,000* Variable Rate 

Total  $    47,586,000 $   40,140,000  
* To be refunded in full by the Note 

 

While the proposed issuance of Note will represent a slight increase ($3.775 million) to the University’s 

outstanding debt, the pro forma total of ~$43.915 million will remain well-below Moody’s “Baa” private 

university median of $73.26 million.  Further, the University’s capital ratios and liquidity are expected to 

remain robust with total cash and investments of $105.8 million as of fiscal year 2020 providing a strong 

2.41x coverage to proposed total debt of ~$43.915 million.  Finally, the University’s debt burden, measured 

by pro forma maximum annual debt service as a percent of operating expenses as of fiscal year 2020, will 

increase slightly to 4.98% from 4.57%.  

ASSETS 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Total Assets 222,794$                220,395$                211,148$                205,000$                200,073$                

LIABILIT IES

Total Liabilities 57,298                    62,304                    64,941                    59,949                    64,963                    

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted 62,522                    61,111                    52,443                    40,350                    38,619                    

Temporarily restricted -                           -                           93,764                    36,595                    31,914                    

Permanently restricted 102,975                  96,979                    -                           68,106                    64,577                    

Total Net Assets 165,497                  158,090                  146,207                  145,051                  135,110                  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 222,795$                220,394$                211,148$                205,000$                200,073$                

Hamline University

Statements of Financial Position (in thousands of dollars)

As of June 30, 2020 thru 2016



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 

Application Review Letter from North Slope Capital Advisors 

for Financing on behalf of Hamline University (Series 2021) 

Date: May 19, 2021 

Page: 3 

 
 

The Project 
 

A portion of the proceeds of the Note will be used to finance infrastructure renovations to Drew Residence 

Hall as well as finance the conversion from high pressure steam to low pressure steam on the North Campus.  

The remaining portion of the proceeds of the Note will be used to refund the remaining Series 2013 (Seven-

Y2) Note currently outstanding in the amount of $2,975,000 and pay costs of issuance.  The total cost of the 

Project is expected to be $9.03 million with approximately $6.75 million of the Note proceeds used to 

finance the Project and the remaining $2.28 million from other sources of the University.  The renovations 

to Drew Hall, and the steam conversion work commenced on May 10th, 2021 and both projects are expected 

to be completed in August 2022.   

 

The Financing 
 

The University anticipates issuing one note to finance the Project, refinance all the remaining outstanding 

Series 2013 (Seven-Y2) Notes and pay costs of issuance.  The estimated par amount of the Note is 

approximately $9,875,000 with the first principal payment estimated to be October 1, 2021 and a final 

maturity of October 1, 2031 (10-year amortization).  Debt service on the Note is expected to be structured 

using a mortgage-style amortization structure with principal payable annually. 

 

The University has determined to place the Note with U.S. Bank (the “Purchaser”) and the University has 

executed a Fixed Rate Interest Lock and Indemnity Agreement, dated April 1, 2021, with the Purchaser to lock 

the fixed interest rate at 2.23%.  The rate will remain fixed at 2.23% for an initial period of five years 

(7/15/2026) but the Note will amortize over a 10-year period as mentioned previously.  The University will 

have the option to request an extension on the Note from the Purchaser 180 days prior to July 15, 2026; 

otherwise, the Note will be subject to mandatory tender by the Purchaser to the University on such date.  

Finally, the University will have the option to prepay 10% of the principal outstanding annual without any 

prepayment penalty.  Provided in Appendix C is a debt service ‘skyline’ for the University’s outstanding and 

pro forma debt service based on debt service pro formas prepared by North Slope on May 10, 2021. 

 

Sources and Uses (as of May 12, 2021) 

A preliminary estimate of sources and uses for the Note is provided below: 
 

Preliminary Sources and Uses 

SOURCES  

  Par amount   $9,875,000 

Total Sources  $9,875,000 

  

USES  

  Deposit to Escrow Fund (refund Seven-Y2 Note)  $2,975,000 

  Deposit to Project Fund 6,750,000 

  Estimated costs of issuance 150,000 

Total Uses  $9,875,000 

 

Security for the Note 

The Note will be issued by the Authority and secured by loan repayments made by the University pursuant 

to a Loan Agreement between the Authority and the University, or from other amounts pledged pursuant 

to a Trust Indenture.  The University will also covenant in the Loan Agreement to not mortgage nor grant a 

security interest in the main campus in St. Paul, Minnesota (e.g., negative pledge).  The Note will be payable 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 

Application Review Letter from North Slope Capital Advisors 

for Financing on behalf of Hamline University (Series 2021) 

Date: May 19, 2021 

Page: 4 

 
solely as a general obligation of the University from the general funds or any other moneys legally available 

to the University.  Finally, it is anticipated there will not be a mortgage lien nor security interest in any 

property of the University, and no debt service reserve fund will be funded with proceeds of the Note.   

 

Financial Covenants  

The University is subject to financial covenants contained in the Loan Agreement(s) for the Series 2017B 

Bonds, the Series 2017A Note, and the Series 2013 (Seven-Y2) Note issued through the Authority as 

summarized below:   
 

Series 2017B Bonds Series 2017A Note Series 2013 (Seven-Y2) Note3 

1. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio 1. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio 1. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio 

Coverage Ratio > 1.10x Coverage Ratio > 1.10x Coverage Ratio > 1.15x 
   

2. Additional Bonds Test  2. Liquidity Covenant  2. Net Assets Ratio 

Liquidity Ratio > 50%, and 

Average 2-yr Coverage Ratio > 1.10x 

Minimum Unrestricted Liquidity of 

$5 million each FY 

Debt / total net assets < 50% 

 

After the Note is issued, the financial covenants associated with the Series 2017B Bonds and the Series 

2017A Note will remain outstanding and the covenants associated with the Series 2013 (Seven-Y2) Note 

will be eliminated.  For the Series 2021 Note, the Purchaser has proposed the following financial covenants: 
 

Series 2021 Note 

1. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio 

Coverage Ratio > 1.10x 
 

2. Liquidity Covenant 

Minimum Eligible Cash and Investments of $15 million each FY 

 

3. Additional Bonds Test 

No additional parity or subordinate debt without Purchaser consent with the exception of equipment debt < $500,000 

 

As provided in the University’s continuing disclosure filing on March 5, 2021, the University met the annual 

financial covenants associated with the Series 2017B Bonds, Series 2017A Note and Series 2013 (Seven-Y2) 

Note for Fiscal Year 2020.   

 

Before issuing the Series 2021 Note, the University will need to comply with the Additional Bonds Test 

Associated with the Series 2017B Bonds.  As indicated below, North Slope has calculated the Additional 

Bonds Test and the University meets the requirements of the Series 2017B Bonds Additional Bonds Tests to 

incur the additional debt: 
 

Series 2017B Bonds 

2. Additional Bonds Test  

Liquidity Ratio > 50% and average 2-yr Coverage Ratio > 1.10x 

Liquidity Ratio = 244% (FY20 Cash and Investments of $107.28MM / Pro Forma Funded Debt of $43.915MM) 

Average 2-yr Coverage Ratio = 3.18x (Avg. NIADS FY20+FY19 of $13.5MM / Pro Forma MADS of $4.25MM) 

 

 

 

 
3 Eliminated after the issuance of the Series 2021 Note. 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 

Application Review Letter from North Slope Capital Advisors 

for Financing on behalf of Hamline University (Series 2021) 

Date: May 19, 2021 

Page: 5 

 
Ratings 

The University currently has a long-term rating of “Baa3” with a stable outlook from Moody’s Investors 

Service (“Moody’s”) which was affirmed on April 23, 2021 and a copy of which is provided in Appendix D.  

The University will not be seeking a rating in conjunction with the Note. 

 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 

Application Review Letter from North Slope Capital Advisors 

for Financing on behalf of Hamline University (Series 2021) 

Date: May 19, 2021 

Appendix A 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS

2020

Without Donor 

Restrictions

2020

With Donor 

Restrictions

2020

Total

2019

Without Donor 

Restrictions

2019

With Donor 

Restrictions

2019

Total

Tuition and fees, Net of Discount of $42,881,051 in 2020 and $41,500,616 in 2019 55,533$             -$                    55,533$             55,867$             -$                    55,867$             

Government Grants 5,134                  -                      5,134                  2,674                  -                      2,673                  

Contributions 5,573                  6,959                  12,532                10,853                1,411                  12,264                

Investment Income, Net 312                     (209)                    103                     393                     258                     651                     

Sales and Services of Educational Activities 800                     1                          801                     758                     9                          767                     

Other Sources 1,881                  89                        1,970                  4,594                  201                     4,795                  

Auxiliary Enterprises 7,119                  0                          7,119                  8,525                  2                          8,527                  

Appropriation of Endownment Assetts for Expenditure 765                     3,368                  4,133                  758                     3,283                  4,041                  

Net assets released from restrictions 5,160                  (5,160)                 -                      4,249                  (4,249)                 -                      

Total Operating Revenues, Gains and Other Support 82,277                5,048                  87,325                88,671                915                     89,585                

EXPENSES

Instruction 23,639                -                      23,639                24,181                -                      24,181                

Academic Support 10,334                -                      10,334                9,873                  -                      9,873                  

Research 82                        -                      82                        95                        -                      95                        

Public Services 2,559                  -                      2,559                  3,522                  -                      3,522                  

Student Services 15,741                -                      15,741                13,655                -                      13,655                

Institutional Support 16,390 -                      16,390                15,916                -                      15,916                

Auxiliary Enterprises 11,803                -                      11,803                12,613                -                      12,613                

Total Operating Expenses 80,548                -                      80,548                79,855                -                      79,855                

Change in Net Assets from Operating Activities 1,729                  5,048                  6,777                  8,816                  915                     9,730                  

NONOPERATING ACTIVIT IES

Contributions 45                        926                     971                     69                        2,423                  2,492                  

Net Investment Return 3,983                  (932)                    3,051                  3,997                  (199)                    3,798                  

Appropriation of Endownment Assets for Expenditures (4,133)                 -                      (4,133)                 (4,040)                 -                      (4,040)                 

Change in Value of Split-Interest Agreements -                      1,057                  1,057                  -                      114                     114                     

Reclassification of Net Assets 103                     (103)                    -                      38                        (38)                      -                      

Board Designation Unrestricted Spending (317)                    -                      (317)                    (211)                    -                      (211)                    

Change in Net Assets from Nonoperating Activities (319)                    948                     629                     (147)                    2,300                  2,153                  

Change in net assets 1,410                  5,996                  7,406                  8,669                  3,215                  11,883                

Net Assets beginning of year 61,112                96,979                158,091             52,443                93,764                146,208             

Net Assets end of year 62,522$             102,975$           165,497$           61,112$             96,979$             158,091$           

Consolidated Statement of Activities (in thousands of dollars)

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019

Hamline University



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 

Application Review Letter from North Slope Capital Advisors 

for Financing on behalf of Hamline University (Series 2021) 

Date: May 19, 2021 

Appendix B 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

ASSETS 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Cash and cash equivalents 5,006$                    1,990$                    1,339$                    2,696$                    2,087$                    

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,643                       2,676                       3,486                       3,696                       3,948                       

Prepaid expenses and other assets 6,877                       4,628                       3,976                       1,378                       1,262                       

Accounts receivable, net 5,951                       5,642                       4,872                       5,277                       5,720                       

Contributions receivable 7,495                       10,675                    1,126                       1,112                       1,258                       

Student Loans Receivable, Net 3,571                       4,504                       5,630                       6,153                       6,688                       

Investments 100,848                  97,788                    95,099                    90,501                    83,009                    

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 88,014                    90,899                    93,475                    91,967                    94,339                    

Construction in Progress 71                            85                            517                          471                          140                          

Beneficial interest in trust 2,318                       1,508                       1,628                       1,749                       1,622                       

Total Assets 222,794$                220,395$                211,148$                205,000$                200,073$                

LIABILIT IES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,770$                    5,852$                    6,531$                    6,982$                    7,042$                    

Deposits and Deferred Revenue 2,528                       2,467                       2,685                       3,131                       3,616                       

Annuities and Unitrusts Payable 824                          1,198                       1,214                       1,286                       1,492                       

Perkins Loans Refundable to Government 3,694                       5,247                       5,092                       6,183                       7,002                       

Long-Term Debt 45,482                    47,540                    49,419                    42,367                    45,811                    

Total Liabilities 57,298                    62,304                    64,941                    59,949                    64,963                    

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted 62,522                    61,111                    52,443                    40,350                    38,619                    

Temporarily restricted -                           -                           93,764                    36,595                    31,914                    

Permanently restricted 102,975                  96,979                    -                           68,106                    64,577                    

Total Net Assets 165,497                  158,090                  146,207                  145,051                  135,110                  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 222,795$                220,394$                211,148$                205,000$                200,073$                

Hamline University

Statements of Financial Position (in thousands of dollars)

As of June 30, 2020 thru 2016



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 

Application Review Letter from North Slope Capital Advisors 

for Financing on behalf of Hamline University (Series 2021) 

Date: May 19, 2021 

Appendix C 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 

Application Review Letter from North Slope Capital Advisors 

for Financing on behalf of Hamline University (Series 2021) 

Date: May 19, 2021 

Appendix D 

 

 

 

 

Moody’s Issuer Comment 



U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

ISSUER COMMENT
23 April 2021

RATING

Seniormost Rating 1

Baa3 Stable

Contacts

Ceridwynne Lake +1.312.706.9970
AVP-Analyst
ceridwynne.lake@moodys.com

Susan E Shaffer +1.212.553.4132
VP-Sr Credit Officer
susan.shaffer@moodys.com

Jared Brewster +1.212.553.4453
AVP-Analyst
jared.brewster@moodys.com

CLIENT SERVICES

Americas 1-212-553-1653

Asia Pacific 852-3551-3077

Japan 81-3-5408-4100

EMEA 44-20-7772-5454

Hamline University, MN
Annual comment on Hamline

Issuer profile
Hamline University is a moderately sized private, not-for-profit university located in St Paul,
MN. In fiscal 2020, Hamline generated operating revenue of $84 million and enrolled 2,737
full-time equivalent (FTE) students as of fall 2020.

Credit overview
Hamline University’s (Baa3 stable) credit quality is driven by its good regional brand and
favorable urban location within the Twin Cities (Minneapolis Aa1 stable; St. Paul Aa1 stable)
metro. Nonetheless, the university has faced persistent enrollment decline over multiple
years. The university’s operating revenue concentration in net tuition and student fee
revenue makes it particularly vulnerable to the effects of enrollment loss. Additionally, pricing
power is further limited by the university’s focused mission to provide education to first
generation students. The university’s credit quality, however, is supported by its concerted
effort to maintain steady operating cash flows largely through cost containment measures
that have improved incrementally over the past five fiscal years. Debt to cash flow compares
favorably to the median of similarly rated peers, though total wealth per student remains
lower than peers.

Exhibit 1

Hamline University, MN 2

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Median:
Baa rated

private
universities

Total FTE Enrollment 3,107 3,036 3,055 2,992 2,737 3,032
Operating Revenue ($000) 81,332 80,513 80,724 89,908 83,944 101,185
Annual Change in Operating
Revenue (%)

-6.3 -1.0 0.3 11 -6.6 1.5

Total Cash and Investments ($000) 85,096 93,196 96,439 99,778 105,854 162,798
Total Debt ($000) 46,247 42,983 45,901 44,124 42,166 73,259
Spendable Cash and Investments to
Total Debt (x)

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.3

Spendable Cash and Investments to
Operating Expenses (x)

0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 1.0

Monthly Days Cash on Hand 74 99 114 108 107 225
Operating Cash Flow Margin (%) 10.0 12.3 12.8 20.3 13.2 11.7
Total Debt to Cash Flow (x) 5.7 4.3 4.4 2.4 3.8 5.5
Annual Debt Service Coverage (x) 1.3 1.6 2.5 4.8 2.8 2.2
Source: Moody's Investors Service

http://www.surveygizmo.com/s3/1133212/Rate-this-research?pubid=PBM_1279005
https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/Hamline-University-MN-credit-rating-800015754/summary
https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/Minneapolis-City-of-MN-credit-rating-600003562/summary
https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/St-Paul-City-of-MN-credit-rating-600035585/summary


MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

Market profile: Hamline has a good regional brand as the State of Minnesota’s (Aa1 stable) oldest private university and offers
both undergraduate and graduate programs. Hamline’s market, however, is exceptionally competitive, as demonstrated by the
university’s multi-year enrollment decline and steadily increasing tuition discounting. Beneficially, however, philanthropic support
has strengthened, including a large $10 million bequest in fiscal 2019 and a successful fundraising campaign that will bolster the
university’s unrestricted endowment.

» Hamline's moderate scope of operations at $84 million in fiscal 2020 limits its ability to adjust to revenue downturns, though it has
remained relatively level compared with fiscal 2016.

» Enrollment has declined materially by 12% to 2,737 students in fall 2020 from 3,107 students in fall 2016. The decline does denote
some weakening student draw, but also reflects the university's discontinuation of its law school.

» Hamline's significant tuition discount has increased modestly to 44% in fiscal 2020 from 39% in fiscal 2016, highlighting a
competitive pricing environment. The discount, however, it is in line with the Baa-rated private university median and is expected to
remain steady in fiscal 2021.

» Robust philanthropy has driven three-year average gift per student of $4,000, which is stronger than the Baa-rated peer median of
$2,700.

Exhibit 2

Net tuition revenue has been remarkably stable despite downward pressure from enrollment losses

$ 
m

illi
on

s
N

um
ber of students

Total net tuition and fee revenue (left axis) Total FTE enrollment (right axis)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

2016 enrollment reflects the final year the University included law school students prior to discontinuing the program
Source: Moody's Investors Service

Operating performance: Hamline’s operating performance remains strong despite revenue pressure driven by enrollment losses. The
university consistently produces balanced operations, resulting in strongly positive operating cash flow margins. Balanced operations
have been maintained through the university’s concerted cost containment measures, adequately maintaining budget alignment
despite waning net tuition revenue. Fiscal 2020 operating results remained robust, aided by ongoing expense adjustments, CARES
Act funding, and strong gift support. As of the date of this report, the university reports a positive budget variance for fiscal 2021 and
expects to end the year with a similarly strong operating cash flow margin within 10%-13%.

» The university's sound operating cash flow margin of 13% in fiscal 2020 was down from 20% in fiscal 2019 because the fiscal 2019
operations were inflated by an unrestricted bequest. The university trends toward a stable operating cash flow margin, averaging
around 10%.

This publication does not announce a credit rating action. For any credit ratings referenced in this publication, please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page on
www.moodys.com for the most updated credit rating action information and rating history.

2          23 April 2021 Hamline University, MN: Annual comment on Hamline

https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/Minnesota-State-of-credit-rating-496600/summary


MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

» The university's debt service coverage of 2.8x in fiscal 2020 illustrates the university's ample ability to repay debt from operations
and has strengthened from 1.3x in fiscal 2016.

» Hamline's three year average gift revenue has grown significantly by 132% to $11 million in fiscal 2020 compared with $5 million
in fiscal 2016, reflecting a large bequest in fiscal 2019 but also captures steady fundraising improvements. The strengthening has a
modestly important effect on the university's operating performance, given that 10% of operating revenue is from gift revenue.

» The university's sources of revenue are concentrated with 75% derived from net tuition and fees, which creates moderate risks for
the university if the primary revenue stream is pressured.

Exhibit 3

Operating cash flow margins remain generally consistent and in line with peers

%

Operating cash flow margin Median: Baa rated private universities

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

0

4

8

12

16

20

24

28

The uptick in fiscal 2019 due to a one-time bequest.
Source: Moody's Investors Service

Wealth and liquidity: Hamline’s total wealth per student is lower than similarly rated peers, though it has grown owing to the
maintenance good operating performance and strong gift support. While unrestricted reserves are moderately narrow compared to
operations, Hamline maintains satisfactory liquidity.

» Total cash and investments have materially grown by 24% to $106 million in fiscal 2020 compared with $85 million in fiscal 2016.
Despite the growth, wealth remains lower than similarly rated peers at $38,700 per student, compared to the Baa-peer median of
$51,600.

» Spendable cash and investments to operating expenses improved to 0.4x in fiscal 2020 from 0.3x in fiscal 2016 but is well below
that of similarly rated peers with median spendable cash and investments to operating expenses of 1.0x.

» Hamline's satisfactory monthly days cash on hand of 107 days in fiscal 2020 has strengthened from 74 days in fiscal 2016.

3          23 April 2021 Hamline University, MN: Annual comment on Hamline



MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

Exhibit 4

Total wealth per student remains below peers but has been steadily growing

 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

 2016  2017  2018  2019  2020

($
)

 Total cash & investments per student

 Baa-rated peer median total cash and investments per student

Source: Moody's Investors Service

Leverage: The university’s leverage is moderate compared to operations and total wealth. Hamline, however, has not invested in
capital at a rate sufficient to keep pace with depreciation. Subdued capital spending has driven up the university’s age of plant. The
university's plan to issue new debt will be offset by the repayment of its 2017A obligation, therefore, leverage is expected to remain
manageable.

» Hamline’s spendable cash and investments to total adjusted debt of 0.7x in fiscal 2020 has improved from 0.4x in fiscal 2016 and is
in line with the Baa-rated private university median.

» The university's debt to cash flow improved to 3.8x in fiscal 2020 from 5.7x in fiscal 2016 and is stronger than the Baa-rated private
university median of 5.5x.

» Capital spending is consistently below the level needed to fund depreciation at 0.6x in fiscal 2020. Restrained investment in PP&E
has driven an elevated age of plant, at 21.2 years in fiscal 2020, up from 17.6 years in fiscal 2016. The university’s age of plant
exceeds the Baa-rated private university median of 14.7 years.

4          23 April 2021 Hamline University, MN: Annual comment on Hamline



MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

Exhibit 5

Capital spending has not kept pace with depreciation driving increasing deferred maintenance

 -

 0.3

 0.5

 0.8

 1.0

 1.3

 1.5

 1.8

 -

 5

 10

 15

 20

 25

 2016  2017  2018  2019  2020

(x
)

n
um

b
er

 o
f 

ye
ar

s

 Age of plant  Capital spending  (right axis)

Source: Moody's Investors Service

Sector trends
We have a stable outlook for the US higher education sector as colleges and universities face improved revenue prospects through
fiscal 2022. The stable outlook is driven by a combination of factors including the potential for students to return to campus in greater
numbers in fall 2021, the funding boost from additional federal support and fiscal stimulus, a steadier outlook for state funding, and
strong investment returns. Despite improved prospects overall, the sector still faces significant enrollment uncertainty headed into
fall 2021 and increases in revenue from tuition and auxiliaries will vary significantly among institutions and regions. Also, the sector
continues to face longer-term demographic changes and shifts in consumer preferences that will continue to constrain revenue growth.

Endnotes
1 The rating referenced in this report is the college's or university's seniormost public rating.

2 Definitions of the metrics in the Key Indicators table are available in the appendices of our most recently published Higher Education medians reports,
public university and private university. The appendices also provide additional metrics broken out by sector and rating category. We use data from a
variety of sources to calculate the medians, some of which have differing reporting schedules. Median data for prior years published in this report may
not match last year's publication because of data refinement and changes in the sample sets used, as well as rating changes, initial ratings, and rating
withdrawals. Median data represents the most recent published median data, which in some cases could be from the prior fiscal year.

5          23 April 2021 Hamline University, MN: Annual comment on Hamline

https://www.moodys.com/researchdocumentcontentpage.aspx?docid=PBM_1234913
https://www.moodys.com/researchdocumentcontentpage.aspx?docid=PBM_1230280


MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

© 2021 Moody’s Corporation, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., Moody’s Analytics, Inc. and/or their licensors and affiliates (collectively, “MOODY’S”). All rights reserved.

CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS AFFILIATES ARE THEIR CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT
COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND MATERIALS, PRODUCTS, SERVICES AND INFORMATION PUBLISHED BY MOODY’S (COLLECTIVELY,
“PUBLICATIONS”) MAY INCLUDE SUCH CURRENT OPINIONS. MOODY’S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY MAY NOT MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL
FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT OR IMPAIRMENT. SEE APPLICABLE MOODY’S
RATING SYMBOLS AND DEFINITIONS PUBLICATION FOR INFORMATION ON THE TYPES OF CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS ADDRESSED BY MOODY’S
CREDIT RATINGS. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE
VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS, NON-CREDIT ASSESSMENTS (“ASSESSMENTS”), AND OTHER OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT
STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT. MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS MAY ALSO INCLUDE QUANTITATIVE MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF CREDIT RISK AND
RELATED OPINIONS OR COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY’S ANALYTICS, INC. AND/OR ITS AFFILIATES. MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER
OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER
OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND DO NOT PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. MOODY’S CREDIT
RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS DO NOT COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR.
MOODY’S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLISHES ITS PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION AND UNDERSTANDING
THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH DUE CARE, MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR PURCHASE,
HOLDING, OR SALE.

MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS, AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY RETAIL INVESTORS AND IT WOULD BE RECKLESS
AND INAPPROPRIATE FOR RETAIL INVESTORS TO USE MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS OR PUBLICATIONS WHEN MAKING AN INVESTMENT
DECISION. IF IN DOUBT YOU SHOULD CONTACT YOUR FINANCIAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER.
ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED
OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED, REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE
FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON WITHOUT MOODY’S PRIOR WRITTEN
CONSENT.
MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY ANY PERSON AS A BENCHMARK AS THAT TERM IS
DEFINED FOR REGULATORY PURPOSES AND MUST NOT BE USED IN ANY WAY THAT COULD RESULT IN THEM BEING CONSIDERED A BENCHMARK.
All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY’S from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error as well
as other factors, however, all information contained herein is provided “AS IS” without warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary measures so that the information it
uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources MOODY'S considers to be reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However,
MOODY’S is not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received in the rating process or in preparing its Publications.
To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability to any person or entity for any
indirect, special, consequential, or incidental losses or damages whatsoever arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any
such information, even if MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors or suppliers is advised in advance of the possibility of such losses or
damages, including but not limited to: (a) any loss of present or prospective profits or (b) any loss or damage arising where the relevant financial instrument is not the subject of a
particular credit rating assigned by MOODY’S.
To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability for any direct or compensatory
losses or damages caused to any person or entity, including but not limited to by any negligence (but excluding fraud, willful misconduct or any other type of liability that, for the
avoidance of doubt, by law cannot be excluded) on the part of, or any contingency within or beyond the control of, MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents,
representatives, licensors or suppliers, arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any such information.
NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY CREDIT
RATING, ASSESSMENT, OTHER OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY’S IN ANY FORM OR MANNER WHATSOEVER.
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody’s Corporation (“MCO”), hereby discloses that most issuers of debt securities (including
corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. have, prior to assignment of any credit rating,
agreed to pay to Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. for credit ratings opinions and services rendered by it fees ranging from $1,000 to approximately $5,000,000. MCO and Moody’s
Investors Service also maintain policies and procedures to address the independence of Moody’s Investors Service credit ratings and credit rating processes. Information regarding
certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and rated entities, and between entities who hold credit ratings from Moody’s Investors Service and have also publicly
reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%, is posted annually at www.moodys.com under the heading “Investor Relations — Corporate Governance —
Director and Shareholder Affiliation Policy.”
Additional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to the Australian Financial Services License of MOODY’S affiliate, Moody’s Investors
Service Pty Limited ABN 61 003 399 657AFSL 336969 and/or Moody’s Analytics Australia Pty Ltd ABN 94 105 136 972 AFSL 383569 (as applicable). This document is intended
to be provided only to “wholesale clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By continuing to access this document from within Australia, you
represent to MOODY’S that you are, or are accessing the document as a representative of, a “wholesale client” and that neither you nor the entity you represent will directly or
indirectly disseminate this document or its contents to “retail clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. MOODY’S credit rating is an opinion as to
the creditworthiness of a debt obligation of the issuer, not on the equity securities of the issuer or any form of security that is available to retail investors.
Additional terms for Japan only: Moody's Japan K.K. (“MJKK”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is wholly-owned by Moody’s
Overseas Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MCO. Moody’s SF Japan K.K. (“MSFJ”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of MJKK. MSFJ is not a Nationally
Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (“NRSRO”). Therefore, credit ratings assigned by MSFJ are Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings. Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings are assigned by an
entity that is not a NRSRO and, consequently, the rated obligation will not qualify for certain types of treatment under U.S. laws. MJKK and MSFJ are credit rating agencies registered
with the Japan Financial Services Agency and their registration numbers are FSA Commissioner (Ratings) No. 2 and 3 respectively.
MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) hereby disclose that most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred
stock rated by MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) have, prior to assignment of any credit rating, agreed to pay to MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) for credit ratings opinions and services
rendered by it fees ranging from JPY125,000 to approximately JPY550,000,000.
MJKK and MSFJ also maintain policies and procedures to address Japanese regulatory requirements.

REPORT NUMBER 1279005

6          23 April 2021 Hamline University, MN: Annual comment on Hamline

http://www.moodys.com


MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

CLIENT SERVICES

Americas 1-212-553-1653

Asia Pacific 852-3551-3077

Japan 81-3-5408-4100

EMEA 44-20-7772-5454

7          23 April 2021 Hamline University, MN: Annual comment on Hamline



MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Barry Fick 

Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 

FROM: Fryberger, Buchanan, Smith & Frederick, P.A. 

DATE: May 12, 2021 

RE: Application of the Trustees of the Hamline University of Minnesota for MHEFA 
Financing 

 
We have reviewed the Application of the Trustees of the Hamline University of Minnesota 

(the “University”), as owner and operator of Hamline University (the “Institution”), dated 
April 23, 2021, and have found the Application to be complete and satisfactory, subject to the 
following: 

1. Purpose. The Application relates to financing (i) the refunding of the Authority’s 
Revenue Note, Series Seven-Y2 (Trustees of the Hamline University of Minnesota) (the “Series 
Seven-Y2 Note”); and (ii) the renovation of Drew Residence Hall and the conversion of the north 
campus heating system from high pressure steam to low pressure steam (collectively, the 
“Project”). 

The Series Seven-Y2 Note was issued to provide funds to be loaned to the University to 
refund the Authority’s Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series Six-E2 (Trustees of the 
Hamline University of Minnesota), dated June 30, 2005 (the “Series Six-E2 Bonds”). The Series 
Six-E2 Bonds were issued to provide funds to be loaned to the University to finance the 
renovations, improvements and equipping of the Bush Memorial Library (including plaza repairs 
and a chiller replacement), the Robbins Science Center, the Drew Fine Arts Center, the Ceramics 
Studio Building, Sorin Hall and other facilities on the Institution’s main campus and the acquisition 
of, and renovation, improvement and equipping to, the Institution’s President’s residence and event 
center (together with Drew Residence Hall and the conversion of the north campus steam heating 
system, the “Project Facilities”). 

2. Incomplete Items. The following items required by the Application are missing or 
incomplete: 

(i) Evidence of Title and Survey. No title insurance commitment or title 
opinion or survey was provided with the Application. The University must provide (a) 
recent title evidence in the form of a title insurance commitment or attorney’s title opinion 
prior to the bond closing, showing that the University has good title (or other suitable 
interest) to the Project Facilities; and (b) a survey or other acceptable site diagram of the 
property on which the Project Facilities are located. 

(ii) Financial Covenants and Limitation on Debt. The notes to the University’s 
most recent financial statement sets forth a list of outstanding debt incurred by the 



2 

University and include, in addition to the Authority’s revenue bonds and notes, two bank 
lines of credit. The Application lists a lease obligation in connection with the City of St. 
Paul Taxable Ballpark Lease Revenue Note, Series 2015. Prior to the issuance of the 
proposed revenue note, the University, its accountant and counsel should examine all prior 
covenants and provide the Authority with the additional information necessary to 
demonstrate both current compliance, and whether issuance of the proposed revenue note 
will cause an event of noncompliance. 

3. Establishment of Religion. While the Composite Articles of Incorporation of the 
University (as amended through June 20, 2008) indicate that 11 of the 40 trustees shall be 
members, ministerial or lay, of the Minnesota Annual Conference of the United Methodist Church 
and, in the Application, the University indicates that it receives some support, in the form of gifts, 
from members of the Minnesota Methodist Churches, the Application contains statements and 
other items in support of a conclusion that the University is not a “sectarian” or pervasively 
religious institution, and that the Project Facilities will not be used for religious purposes, in 
applying the Establishment Clause of the First Amendment to the United States Constitution. 

We have been provided a copy of a letter dated March 28, 2002, addressed to the Authority 
from the Minnesota Annual Conference of the United Methodist Church expressing the position 
that such Conference does not control the University under civil law and church rule or law. Also, 
absent control of the University by a sectarian donor, the mere receipt of monetary support does 
not disqualify the University from eligibility for Authority assistance. Furthermore, the 
University’s institutional documents make it clear that the University’s policy is not to discriminate 
on the basis of creed (or other distinctions) in its admissions, course materials and hiring practices, 
although the members of the Authority should satisfy themselves that the University in fact 
continues the nondiscriminatory policies and practices which have been evidenced by the 
Authority in the past. Under the Supreme Court’s guidelines as established by the relevant 
decisions, the focus on actual practices is as important as the focus on institutional documents. 
Therefore, the members of the Authority should be satisfied that the University does in fact follow 
academic freedom in the classroom and non-discrimination practices in faculty and student 
recruitment, retention and promotion. 

On these facts, and under existing judicial interpretation of the Establishment of Religion 
Clause, we conclude that Authority financing proposed by the University will not violate 
Establishment of Religion clause limitations. 

We note that recent United States Supreme Court decisions in this area, while not directly 
on point, appear to broaden the permitted scope of public assistance to religious-affiliated 
educational institutions. Financing such as that provided by the Authority falls well within the 
permitted limits. 

4. $150 Million Limit on Tax-Exempt Non-Hospital Bonds Under Section 145(b) of 
the Internal Revenue Code. As noted above, the University receives contributions from members 
of the Minnesota Methodist Churches, and that the Composite Articles of Incorporation of the 
University indicate that 11 of 40 trustees shall be members, ministerial or lay, of the Minnesota 
Annual Conference of the United Methodist Church. As noted above, we have been provided a 
copy of a letter from such Conference regarding lack of control over the University and the amount 



3 

of outstanding tax-exempt non-hospital bonds, if the Conference was considered to control the 
University. 

These facts may be significant because Internal Revenue Code Section 145(b), as it existed 
prior to 1997, limited the aggregate amount of outstanding qualified 501(c)(3) non-hospital bonds 
from which any 501(c)(3) organization may benefit to $150 million. For purposes of this rule, two 
or more organizations under common management or control are treated as one organization. 

The 1997 amendment to Section 145(b) excludes from the $150 million limit tax-exempt 
non-hospital bonds issued after August 5, 1997, as part of an issue 95% or more of the net proceeds 
of which (including issuance costs) are to be used to finance capital expenditures incurred after 
that date. 

The proceeds of the proposed revenue note will be used to refinance the Project Facilities, 
the capital expenditures of which were incurred after August 5, 1997. 

5. Rebate, Two-Year, 18-Month and Six-Month Spend-Down Exceptions. Based on 
the construction schedule in the Application, the exceptions potentially available for the Project 
are the 18-month exception and the 24-month exception. Under the 24-month exception, the 
proceeds of the proposed bonds must be expended within 24 months as determined at the time of 
closing. The cost of equipment, if any, included in the Project may not exceed 25% of the bond 
proceeds. If equipment will constitute more than 25% of the bond proceeds (and if the six or 18-
month exceptions are not applicable), another category of proceeds can be established which 
should include proceeds to be spent on equipment within six months of the closing date. Bond 
Counsel and the Municipal Advisor will work with the University regarding the timing of the 
proposed bond issue and the construction schedule to determine which, if any, exception will be 
possible. 

The following is a summary of each exception: 

a. The Revenue Reconciliation Act of 1989 (the “1989 Act”), as amended by 
a technical corrections act in 1990, created a two-year exception (the “two year spend-
down exception”) from the requirement to pay arbitrage rebate for governmental and 
501(c)(3) bonds which meet the definition of a “construction issue” – that is, a bond issue 
for which at least 75% of net proceeds will be expended for “construction expenditures.” 
“Construction expenditures” are costs of construction chargeable to the capital account 
(other than expenditures for land or existing real property). Construction expenditures 
include costs of fixtures such as heating, ventilating and air conditioning and costs of 
equipment depreciated over a period of a year. To comply with this exception, all available 
construction proceeds of the issue must be spent within two years from the date of closing 
on the bond issue: 10% within six months, 45% within one year, 75% within 18 months 
and 95% to 100% within two years with an extension to three years for up to five percent 
retained from contractors. For the purposes of the proposed bond issue, “available 
construction proceeds” which must be spent on schedule generally includes investment 
earnings, but excludes the amounts used to fund a reserve fund and issuance costs. 
Investment earnings on the reserve fund during the construction period must be spent on 
schedule for project costs, including interest but not principal on the bonds or, if the 



4 

University so elects, must be rebated. Rebate would still be payable on reserve fund 
investment (to the extent the yield of the investments exceeds the bond yield) after the 
construction period, but the two year spend-down exception offers potential significant 
savings. The two-year exception appears to be available for this issue. 

b. The 1989 Act also created an exception for proceeds (whether for refunding, 
equipment or construction) which is spent in six months. 

c. Under Treasury Department Regulations, a third exception was created for 
proceeds, including reasonably expected investment earnings as determined at closing, 
which are spent within 18 months (six months – 15%, 12 months – 60% and 18 months – 
100%), except for a de minimus amount or a reasonable retainage which must be spent 
within 30 months of the bond closing date. This exception is not limited to construction 
purposes. On the basis of the time schedule provided by the University, the 18-month 
exception appears to be available for this issue. 

6. Reimbursement Regulations. The Internal Revenue Service has adopted regulations 
providing rules for determining when an issuer may use bond proceeds to reimburse expenditures 
made before the bonds are issued. The University can be reimbursed for expenditures paid for a 
project (as opposed to incurred but not paid) up to 60 days prior to the bond closing, or an earlier 
declaration of official intent, if applicable. A reimbursement resolution adopted April 27, 2021, 
was filed with the Application. We will check on the eligibility of expenditures the University 
desires to reimburse, if any. 

The University must use proceeds from a bond issue to reimburse itself for prior 
expenditures within 18 months from the later of (i) the date that the original expenditure is paid or 
(ii) the date that an element of the project is placed in service (but in no event more than three 
years after the original expenditure is paid). “Placed in service” means the date on which the 
project or facility has reached a degree of completion which would permit its operation at 
substantially its design level and is in operation at such level. The University should expect to be 
reimbursed from bond proceeds shortly after the closing. 

7. Construction Contracts. At the time of bond closing, the University must be in a 
position to provide a summary of costs incurred and/or paid to date and a reliable cost estimate for 
remaining cost for the Project. 

8. Use of Facilities by Business Enterprises. If the Project Facilities being financed or 
refinanced by the revenue note have had or will have use by a private party of such facilities in a 
trade or business, including a contract with a for-profit private enterprise to provide services in 
connection with any of the financed facilities, we will need to review the use and/or the contract 
to ensure compliance with guidelines relating to private use established in the Internal Revenue 
Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder and in Revenue Procedures 2001-39, 2007-47, 
2016-44 and 2017-13 (together, “Private Use Rules”). The University has not described any such 
activity to be carried on in the Project Facilities, but we think some further inquiry would be 
prudent to determine whether there is any “private use.” Discovery of “private use” may 
necessitate that the University comply with the change of use rules under the Code or guidelines 
in the Private Use Rules to preserve tax-exempt financing for the financed facilities. 



5 

Section 145(a) of the Internal Revenue Code provides that no more than five percent of the 
net proceeds of an issue may be used by any person other than a 501(c)(3) organization or 
governmental unit, or in a trade or business unrelated to the exempt purposes of the University. 
Even if a service or other management contract, or use of parking or other financed facilities, does 
not generate unrelated business income for the University, such agreements may constitute “use” 
of facilities of the University by a private (and nonexempt) entity which could render the revenue 
notes used to finance the facilities taxable. The Private Use Rules are lengthy and complex and 
will require careful review and application. The Private Use Rules require that the costs of issuance 
(a maximum of two percent payable from bond proceeds) to be counted against the five percent 
limit of private use, leaving only three percent available for other private use. 

Subject to certain restrictions, the Private Use Rules would permit parts of the Project 
Facilities which are “used” by a private entity to be financed by tax-exempt bonds. We will need 
to examine the intended “use” of the Project Facilities to determine the applicable restrictions. 

Any change in use or ownership of the financed facilities or any portion thereof should be 
undertaken only with advice of Bond Counsel and, in some cases, advance arrangement of 
“remedial action” under Treasury Regulations Section 1.141-12. 

9. Litigation. The Application states there is no pending litigation or claims against 
the University, except as follows: a former graduate student and resident in the student apartments 
violated the COVID-19 virus campus-wide face mask policy on repeated occasions in the 
University’s common areas and student apartments. The student filed a discrimination complaint 
with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. HUD has not contacted the 
University following the receipt of the initial notice. If any additional litigation or claims are 
hereafter threatened or pending, the University should promptly notify the Authority, the 
Municipal Advisor and Bond Counsel and provide a description of such litigation or claim. 

10. Sinking Fund Proceeds; Replacement Proceeds; Yield Restrictions. The 
Application states that the funds to pay debt service on the proposed revenue note will be derived 
from the University’s general operations. While this financing structure is similar to other recent 
Authority financings and does not appear to raise “sinking fund” concerns, it will nonetheless be 
necessary to analyze whether any “transferred proceeds” from the bonds being refunded are subject 
to rebate or yield limitations under Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

The notes to the University’s financial statements indicate that the University at June 30, 
2020, had substantial unrestricted, temporarily restricted and restricted assets available for various 
purposes. The arbitrage regulations adopted by the Internal Revenue Service impose limits on the 
yield on investments of “gross proceeds” of tax-exempt bonds. “Gross proceeds” include not only 
the actual proceeds received from the issuance and sale of bonds but also other monies 
characterized as “replacement proceeds.” Amounts are “replacement proceeds” under the 
regulations if it is concluded that such amounts would have been used for the governmental 
purpose for which the revenue note is issued (here, the Project) had proceeds of the revenue note 
not been used for that governmental purpose. The mere availability or preliminary earmarking of 
funds for such purposes does not, in itself, necessarily lead to the conclusion that such funds would 
have been used for the governmental purpose of the revenue note and thus are replacement 



6 

proceeds. We will confer with the University and its counsel to confirm compliance with the 
replacement proceeds rules. 

The refunding of the Series Seven-Y2 Note will be a current refunding, as the Series 
Seven-Y2 Note prepayment will occur within 90 days of the date of issuance of the proposed note. 

M:\DOCS\15003\000041\MEM\19R1464.DOCX 



RESOLUTION RELATING TO APPLICATION FOR  
THE TRUSTEES OF HAMLINE UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA 

 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority as follows: 

1. The Authority acknowledges receipt on April 23, 2021, of the Application under 
Sections 136A.25 to 136A.42 Minnesota Statutes, as amended (the “Act”) on behalf of the Trustees 
of the Hamline University of Minnesota, a Minnesota nonprofit corporation (the “University”), as 
owner and operator of Hamline University (the “Institution”), and exhibits thereto, including an 
Indemnity Agreement and an application fee in the amount of $1,000, for a proposal relating to 
(i) refunding of the Authority’s Revenue Note, Series Seven-Y2 (Trustees of the Hamline 
University of Minnesota) (the “Series Seven-Y2 Note”); and (ii) financing the renovation of Drew 
Residence Hall and the conversion of the north campus heating system from high pressure steam 
to low pressure steam (collectively, the “Project”). 

The Series Seven-Y2 Note was issued to provide funds to be loaned to the University to 
refund the Authority’s Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series Six-E2 (Trustees of the 
Hamline University of Minnesota), dated June 30, 2005 (the “Series Six-E2 Bonds”). The Series 
Six-E2 Bonds were issued to provide funds to be loaned to the University to finance the 
renovations, improvements and equipping of the Bush Memorial Library (including plaza repairs 
and a chiller replacement), the Robbins Science Center, the Drew Fine Arts Center, the Ceramics 
Studio Building, Sorin Hall and other facilities on the Institution’s main campus and the acquisition 
of, and renovation, improvement and equipping to, the Institution’s President’s residence and event 
center (together with Drew Residence Hall and the north campus steam heating system, the 
“Project Facilities”). 

The Project Facilities described in this resolution are owned and operated by the University 
and located on its main campus, the principal street address of which is 1536 Hewitt Avenue, St. 
Paul, Minnesota, except for the University President’s residence and event center which is located 
at 1027 Summit Avenue, St. Paul, Minnesota. 

2. As required by Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code, on May 19, 2021, this 
Authority, at a regular meeting, conducted a public hearing on the proposal to undertake and 
finance the Project following notice which was published at least 14 days prior to the date of the 
hearing in a newspaper of general circulation available to residents of the locality where the Project 
Facilities are located and posted at least 14 days prior to the date of the hearing on the Authority’s 
website, at which public hearing all parties who appeared or who submitted written comments 
were given an opportunity to express their views with respect to the proposal. 

3. Officers of the University have presented to this Authority information concerning 
the Project, the feasibility of the Project, the financing schedule for the Project and responded to 
other matters concerning the Project, the Institution and the University. 

4. The Executive Director of the Authority, Fryberger, Buchanan, Smith & Frederick, 
P.A., Bond Counsel, and North Slope Capital Advisors, LLC, Municipal Advisor, have reviewed 



2 

the Application and the exhibits thereto, and have recommend that the Authority approve the 
Application as submitted, subject to the conditions herein set forth. 

5. On the basis of the information contained in the Application and its exhibits and 
orally presented to the Authority and to the Executive Director, Bond Counsel and Municipal 
Advisor, and on the basis of the recommendations made, the Authority hereby finds and 
determines that: 

(a) The University is a nonprofit corporation and the Institution is an institution 
of higher education in the state, eligible to be a participating institution of higher education 
under the Act. 

(b) The Project, as described in the Application, is eligible for financing by the 
Authority pursuant to the Act, and the new money portion of the Project is a “project” 
under the Act. 

(c) The Project Facilities are intended for and will provide for additional 
educational opportunity to the current and future generations of youth of the state in 
nonprofit institutions of higher education and will otherwise carry out the purposes and 
policies of the Act. 

(d) The Institution is nonsectarian and does not require or forbid attendance by 
students or any other persons at religious worship or acceptance of any religious creed and 
does not promulgate the distinctive doctrines, creeds or tenets of any particular religious 
sect and all courses of study, including any religion and theology courses, are taught 
according to the academic requirements of the subject matter and the instructor’s concept 
of professional standards. 

(e) The Institution admits students without unlawful discrimination, and does 
not exclude, expel, limit or otherwise unlawfully discriminate against enrolled students, in 
accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 363A.13. 

(f) The Project Facilities are available to the students of the Institution without 
unlawful discrimination, in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 363A.13. 

(g) Issuance of the revenue note by the Authority will not have the primary 
purpose or effect of advancing religion or interfering with the free exercise of religion and 
will not provide financing for a facility used or to be used for sectarian instruction or as a 
place of religious worship or a facility which is used or to be used primarily in connection 
with any part of the program of a school or department of divinity for any religious 
denomination. 

(h) The Project and issuance of a revenue note appear feasible. 

6. The Project and the issuance of revenue obligations of the Authority in the 
maximum aggregate principal amount of $9,725,000, are therefore approved, provided that the 
University shall furnish any items which are needed to complete the Application or which are 



3 

reasonably required by Bond Counsel in order to deliver an unqualified opinion as to the validity 
of the revenue obligations and tax status of the interest on the revenue obligations. 

7. The Executive Director shall direct Bond Counsel and the Municipal Advisor to the 
Authority to prepare and submit recommendations as to the terms of financing and the forms of a 
loan agreement and a trust indenture or a loan and note purchase agreement, bond purchase 
agreement or a note placement agreement or a similar agreement, a mortgage, if any, an official 
statement or a private placement memorandum, if any, and related documents and resolutions to 
the Authority and to the University for consideration and approval. 

8. The Authority and the University each respectively reserves its right to terminate 
the Project and the financing thereof under the Act as provided in the Indemnity Agreement. 

Adopted: May 19, 2021. 

 
MINNESOTA HIGHER EDUCATION 
FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
 
 
By   

Michael D. Ranum, Chair 
 
 
By   

Gary D. Benson, Secretary 
 
 
Approved:   
 Governor, State of Minnesota 
 
Date Approved:   
 
 
M:\DOCS\15003\000041\ROL\19R0869.DOCX 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority
FY2021 Proposed Adjusted Budget
July 2020 - June 2021

 FY21 Approved 
Budget 

 FY21 Proposed Adjusted 
Budget  Difference 

Income
   4010 Annual Fee Income              403,745.38                            440,527.94          36,782.56 
   4020 Application Fee Income                                -                                 2,000.00          2,000.00 
   4000 Interest Income               36,000.00                             36,000.00                        -   
Total Income            439,745.38                        478,527.94       38,782.56 

Asset Expenses
   1502 Current Year Asset Acquisition 7,500.00                3,500.00                                     (4,000.00)
Expenses
   6000 Stipends                  3,520.00                                3,960.00              440.00 
   6001 Board Travel                  2,500.00                                              -          (2,500.00)
   6002 Communications
         6002.01 Communications - Phones                  7,500.00                               6,000.00         (1,500.00)
         6002.02 Communications - Internet                   1,800.00                                1,800.00                        -   
         6002.03 Communications - Software                      750.00                                    750.00                        -   
         6002.04 Communications - Website                  13,414.00                               11,500.00           (1,914.00)
         6002.05 Communications - Misc                     600.00                                   400.00            (200.00)
   Total 6002 Communications                24,064.00                             20,450.00          (3,614.00)
   6003 Staff Travel                  6,250.00                                   500.00         (5,750.00)
   6004 Office Rent                48,480.72                              48,480.72                        -   
   6005 Office Supplies                      750.00                                   500.00            (250.00)
         6005.01 COVID-19 Related Expenses                  1,000.00                                      (51.36)           (1,051.36)
   6006 Repairs                     500.00                                              -              (500.00)
   6007 Printing Expense                  2,500.00                                1,000.00         (1,500.00)
   6008 Periodicals/Memberships                 8,000.00                               8,000.00                        -   
   6009 Fiscal Consultant Fees                  1,000.00                               4,000.00          3,000.00 
   6010 Audit Fees                  19,125.00                                19,125.00                        -   
   6012 Legal Fees               52,000.00                            60,400.00          8,400.00 
   6013 Insurance Expense                  2,000.00                               2,000.00                        -   
   6015 Miscellaneous Expense                  1,000.00                                   250.00            (750.00)
   6016 Bank Service Charges                 3,000.00                               3,000.00                        -   
   6017 Conference Expenses                 5,000.00                                2,500.00        (2,500.00)
   6018 Professional Development-Board                                -                                                -                          -   
   6020 Professional Development-STAFF                 5,000.00                                1,500.00        (3,500.00)
   6021 IT                        -   
         6021.01 IT - Managed IT Services                  7,800.00                                7,800.00                        -   
         6021.02 IT - Software                   1,500.00                                1,500.00                        -   
         6021.03 IT - Consulting and Training                                -                                     500.00              500.00 
         6021.04 IT - Misc                     500.00                                    750.00              250.00 
   Total 6021 IT                  9,800.00                              10,550.00              750.00 
   6023 Postage/Delivery Expense                      275.00                                    150.00             (125.00)
   6100 Salaries             210,000.00                           215,000.00          5,000.00 
   6101 Fringe Benefits               64,000.00                            64,000.00                        -   
   6104 Worker's Compensation                       170.00                                     170.00                        -   
   6107 Office Contract Work                                -                                13,200.00         13,200.00 
   6200 Equipment Leases
      6200.01 Equipment Lease - Copier                  3,420.00                                3,450.00                30.00 
      6200.02 Equipment Lease - Postage Machine                      740.00                                   740.00                        -   
      6200.03 Equipment Lease - Aquos Board                  2,820.00                                2,820.00                        -   
   Total 6200 Equipment Leases                  6,980.00                                 7,010.00                30.00 
Total Expenses            484,414.72                        489,194.36          4,779.64 

Net Operating Income            (44,669.34)                        (10,666.42)      34,002.92 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
 

 
Plan of Action for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

 
Authority’s Statutory Mandate:  

 
Assist Eligible Institutions In Financing Facilities In An Efficient and Cost Effective Manner 

 
1. Communicate regularly with eligible institutions to explain tax-exempt debt and Authority 

services.  Provide pre-application guidance.  Maintain consistency in financial advisory, bond 
counsel, corporate trust, rating agency and other professional services. Conduct video visit or 
on-campus site visit with all borrower schools at least 1 time.  

2. Arrange for monthly meetings and special events for the Authority, including possible 
campus visits. Review use of video conferencing and telephone meetings within the 
Minnesota Statutory rules.  

• Monthly board meetings have been held successfully via video conference and have 
had consistently higher attendance by board members than in-person/phone 
meetings prior to the ability to utilize video conferencing. Additional members of the 
expanded finance teams for bond issues have been able to attend Authority board 
meetings with this capability as well. The Executive Director has spoken to State of 
MN Attorney General counsel urging them to adopt these changes permanently for 
the post-pandemic environment so as not to lose the benefits and strides that have 
been gained with this technology. 

3. Arrange for an annual conference as continuing education for finance staff from eligible 
institutions to gather for sharing ideas, experiences, and networking opportunities. The 
conference may be in whole or in part an in-person event, a webcast, or a video event, 
depending on circumstances. 

• Based on feedback, the Authority is hoping to host an in-person gathering for the 
Authority’s 50th Anniversary in late fall 2021 when an in-person gathering may be 
possible rather than provide another virtual event. 

4. Provide post-closing education and assistance to borrowers in matters such as tax law 
compliance, continuing disclosure, investor relations, credit rating and IRS inquiries affecting 
tax exempt bonds. 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
 

• Assisted 10 schools on IRS credit updates, worked with Bethel to resolve accounting 
issue related to financial covenant compliance, an effort applicable to all MHEFA 
Borrowers. 

5. Arrange for an annual financing conference to bring representatives of eligible institutions, 
rating agency staff, attorneys, trustees, municipal advisors, institutional investors, and other 
related professionals together for a ½ day gathering for presentations, networking 
opportunities and renewing acquaintances. The conference may be in whole or in part an in-
person event, a webcast, or a video event, depending on circumstances. 

• Hosted a very successful virtual conference that received significant unsolicited 
positive feedback from attendees, and a higher attendance than prior in-person 
conferences. Utilized the Zoom Webinar platform for the first time and walked 
speakers through a practice session the day before the conference in order to deliver 
a smooth, glitch-free presentation. 

• Utilized Voom Creative’s services to create a professional conference invitation, 
landing page on the Authority’s website, and thank you emails. Voom introduced and 
the Authority to and set up new digital event software (MailChimp and EventBrite) 
for delivery and tracking of RSVPs. 

6. Conduct a Request for Proposal process to review Municipal Advisor firms and select a team 
of Municipal Advisors. 

• Selected a roster of Municipal Advisor firms and have used new roster firms for 
multiple financings in the second half of FY21. Will conclude contract negotiations 
prior to FYE 6/30/2021 for Municipal Advisors. 

7. Prepare and disseminate the annual report of the Authority, including the audited financial 
statements.   

• Designed and prepared the FY2020 Annual Report in-house, saving the Authority 
design expense, and delivering the report on-time to the state of MN and borrowers. 

8. Prepare a “Capital Commentary” newsletter for each financing as a reference tool for 
eligible institutions and the Authority. 

• Completed and posted on Authority website. 

9. Stay informed on industry developments and operational practices through affiliations with 
government issuers and regulatory agencies, trade organizations and nonprofit organizations 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
 

such as the National Association of Health and Educational Facilities Finance Authorities 
and the National and Central Association of College and University Business Officers. 

• Continue work as Vice President of NAHEFFA and added responsibility for GFOA 
and MSRB with 2nd year as member of MSRB Compliance Advisory Group. 

10. Monitor regulatory and legislative proposals at the state and federal level regarding the 
capital market and possible limitations on the use of tax-exempt debt, develop coordinated 
responses and keep borrowers informed. Provide input and commentary as appropriate to 
affiliated entities. 

• Continued work in this area has been facilitated by membership on GFOA and 
MSRB and NAHEFFA bodies. 

11. Update MHEFA staff job descriptions consistent with Minnesota Management and Budget 
guidelines (every three years).  

• Executive Director job description updated. Operations Manager job description to 
be updated once status of expansion effort in current legislative session is known. 

12. Expand staff cross-training on critical Authority items to bolster the Authority’s continuity 
plan and create a more seamless transition should immediate needs arise, such as during an 
extended absence that is planned or unplanned or a pandemic. 

• Cross-training is beginning and will continue on essential items to be covered by 
Executive Director during Operation Manager’s maternity leave. A temporary 
replacement for the Operations Manager will be trained on essential duties, with the 
Executive Director as a back-up for many duties. 

13. Begin development of a Succession Plan for Authority staff. 

14. Develop a strategy to identify, cultivate, recruit and recommendations for appointment of 
Board Members. 

• Board Diversity and Inclusion Subcommittee created and utilized to identify 
candidates for appointment of new Board Members. 

15. Monitor and modify as appropriate the new Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
website. Develop criteria to monitor usage to enhance the utility of the website for Authority 
Borrowers, market professionals and the investing public. Continue working with Voom to 
adjust website based on user feedback. Continue to work with BondLink to maintain and 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
 

adjust the MHEFA Investor Relations website, based on user feedback, which will include 
public information and documents for each school as a “one stop shop” for investors.  

• Working with Voom Creative, the Authority launched a 50th Anniversary webpage 
and a professionally designed event page for the Authority conference. 

• Updated website recently won a National Award for design, graphics, ease of use and 
information provided. 

• Working with BondLink, the Authority had its first financing utilizing the Authority’s 
BondLink investment site and recorded and posted its first recorded investor 
presentation for the St. Olaf Series 2021 financing. This financing had record-
breaking results with over $1 billion in orders during the sale of the bonds.  

• The Authority meets with BondLink monthly to ensure the website is updated 
appropriately and to learn about new features offered by BondLink that may be of 
service to the Authority and its borrowers. 

16. Annual Fee updates & changes, coordinate with annual Operating Budget update and 
monitoring. 

• Done for FY2021, maintaining discount rate at a steady level for consistency and 
allowing for better budget planning by schools. In process for FY2022. 

17. Continue to assess status of record retention and disposal of official records and access for 
business continuity purposes.  

• Authority staff have transitioned to all computerized records, no longer needing 
physical documents. For the Macalester 2021 financing, electronic signatures were 
utilized (approved by the Macalester 2021 Bond Counsel), increasing speed and 
efficiency. 

18. Work with Building ownership to review Lease and Options as Building Owners determine 
“best use” for the building. Identify long term workspace needs and future flexibility to 
attract and retain qualified staff. Plan for alternative office space needs of the Authority, 
taking into consideration the benefits and costs of allowing staff to work remotely on a semi 
or full-time basis. Current Lease at 380 Jackson Street, Suite 450 (Cray/Galtier Plaza) ends 
November 30, 2022, with a 3-year extension at the option of the Authority. 

• Based on construction disturbance and the Authority staff’s ability to work remotely 
in a highly effective manner, Authority staff will begin looking for new office space 
upon the Operation Manager’s return from maternity leave in late fall 2021. The 
Authority will likely seek to come to an agreement with current building management 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
 

for an early exit from the Authority’s lease (currently ending November 30, 2022). 
The Authority plans to utilize Calhoun Commerical, or another such firm, to find new 
suitable office space. This new office space may also be outside of the city of St. Paul. 
Authority staff plan to work primarily remotely going forward. This new office space 
will likely be a reduced size, with no dedicated board meeting space, as several metro-
area schools have offered to host the Authority’s board meetings on an ongoing basis.  

19. Review and revise Authority operating procedures for updates due to new technology, 
pandemic environment, continuity of operations, alternative work locations, and review and 
update best practices to maintain a safe and healthy work environment and health of 
employees. 

• The Operations Manager and Executive Director have been working to go through 
the Authority’s outdated operating procedures, including preparing a resolution 
(passed) to update the Authority’s bylaws for the first time since 1993. Authority 
Staff continue to go through each section of the Standing Rules of Operation and 
reclassify sections and propose updates based on current and best practices. 

20. Implement a new phone solution for the Authority, taking into consideration new and 
changing needs of the Authority. 

• The Authority successfully implemented a new Voice Over IP (VOIP) phone system 
through Loffler that allows Authority staff to have desk phones at home, answer calls 
from their cell phones, or from their computers. The system also includes a video 
conferencing feature that is utilized for Authority board meetings and other 
Authority meeting needs. 



Resolution No. 05-2021-__ 

MINNESOTA HIGHER EDUCATION FACILITIES AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION UNDER MANAGERIAL PLAN 2019-2021 

FOR ACHIEVEMENT AWARDS 2020-2021 

 

 WHEREAS, the Managerial Plan establishing compensation, terms and conditions of 
employment for employees identified by the Minnesota Management & Budget (“MMB”) as 
“managerial” applies to the two-year period that began on July 1, 2019 and ends on June 30, 2021 
(“Existing Plan”). 

 WHEREAS, on June 20, 2012, the Authority adopted the Policy on Achievement Awards in 
accordance with MMB guidelines. 

 WHEREAS, on May 19, 2021, the Authority reviewed the overall performance of Barry W. Fick, 
Executive Director and his review of Amanda Lee, Operations Manager, based upon their work to 
maintain the Authority’s level of service during the COVID-19 pandemic and progress on the Authority’s 
Plan of Action for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that each Manager has contributed to progress of the 
Plan of Action in his or her capacity as Executive Director or Operations Manager. 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that each Manager has consistently excelled in the 
performance of his or her respective job duties and the overall evaluation of the performance review of 
each Manager is “outstanding” as contemplated by the Policy. 

 BE IS RESOLVED as follows: 

1. Barry Fick is eligible for the achievement award and is granted a lump sum award of $1,000 for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. 
 

2. Amanda Lee is eligible for the achievement award and is granted a lump sum award of $1,000 for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. 

Adopted: May 19, 2021 

       MINNESOTA HIGHER EDUCATION 
       FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
 

       By _________________________________ 
        Michael Ranum, Chair 
 

 

       By ___________________________________ 
        Gary Benson, Secretary 



July 21, 2021

August 18, 2021

September 15, 2021

Possible Board Recognition/Strategic Planning Dinner 

Amanda Lee most likely to return from maternity leave just 
prior to this meeting

October 20, 2021

November 17, 2021

December 15, 2021

January 19, 2022

February 16, 2022

March 16, 2022

MHEFA Annual Conference/Meeting April 20, 2022

May 18, 2022

June 15, 2022

MINNESOTA HIGHER EDUCATION FACILITIES AUTHORITY
FY 2022 TENTATIVE MEETING SCHEDULE

THIRD WEDNESDAY OF EACH MONTH AT 2:00 PM

The current plan for FY2022 is that meetings will be held on college campuses around the metro area. 
As of May 12, 2021, the campuses for each meeting are TBD.



 
 

 
Plan of Action for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 

 
Authority’s Statutory Mandate:  

 
Assist Eligible Institutions In Financing Facilities In An Efficient and Cost Effective Manner 

 
1. Communicate regularly with eligible institutions to explain tax-exempt debt and Authority services.  

Provide pre-application guidance.  Maintain consistency in financial advisory, bond counsel, corporate 
trust, rating agency and other professional services. Conduct video visit or on-campus site visit with all 
borrower schools at least 1 time.  

2. Arrange for monthly meetings and special events for the Authority, including possible campus visits. 
Review & advocate for continued use of video conferencing and telephone meetings within the Minnesota 
Statutory rules or by working with appropriate parties to update and adjust rules to allow video meetings.  

3. Arrange a 50th Anniversary celebration for the Authority, subject to any limiting circumstances due to 
COVID-19 or other state mandates or situations. 

4. Provide post-closing education and assistance to borrowers in matters such as tax law compliance, 
continuing disclosure, investor relations, credit rating and IRS inquiries affecting tax exempt bonds. 

5. Arrange for an annual financing conference to bring representatives of eligible institutions, rating agency 
staff, attorneys, trustees, municipal advisors, institutional investors, and other related professionals 
together for a ½ day gathering for presentations, networking opportunities and renewing acquaintances. 
The conference may be in whole or in part an in-person event, a webcast, or a video event, depending on 
circumstances. 

6. Prepare and disseminate the annual report of the Authority, including the audited financial statements.   

7. Prepare a “Capital Commentary” newsletter for each financing as a reference tool for eligible institutions 
and the Authority. 

8. Stay informed on industry developments and operational practices through affiliations with government 
issuers and regulatory agencies, trade organizations and nonprofit organizations such as the National 
Association of Health and Educational Facilities Finance Authorities and the National and Central 
Association of College and University Business Officers. 

9. Monitor regulatory and legislative proposals at the state and federal level regarding the capital market and 
possible limitations on the use of tax-exempt debt, develop coordinated responses and keep borrowers 
informed. Provide input and commentary as appropriate to affiliated entities. 



 
 

10. Update MHEFA staff job descriptions consistent with Minnesota Management and Budget guidelines 
(every three years).  

11. Expand staff cross-training on critical Authority items to bolster the Authority’s continuity plan and 
create a more seamless transition should immediate needs arise, such as during an extended absence that 
is planned or unplanned or a pandemic. 

12. Continue development of a Succession Plan for Authority staff. 

13. Increase focus, develop strategy and identify resources to help with the identification and recruitment of 
Board candidates to enhance the diversity and inclusiveness of Board members. 

14. Monitor and modify as appropriate the new Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority website. 
Continue working with Voom to adjust website based on user feedback. Continue to work with BondLink 
to maintain and adjust the MHEFA Investor Relations website, based on user feedback, which includes 
public information and documents for each school as a “one stop shop” for investors.  

15. Annual Fee updates & changes, coordinate with annual Operating Budget update and monitoring. 

16. Continue to assess status of record retention and disposal of official records and access for business 
continuity purposes.  

17. Continue to review and bring forward recommended revisions to the Board of the Authority’s Standing 
Rules of Operation as processes change. 

18. Discuss the possibility of an early lease termination with the Authority’s current building management. 
Identify new office space needs and secure a new Authority office based on updated needs including 
staff’s ability to continue working remotely, the need for some physical office space to house Authority 
property and documents, and the ability of Authority borrower schools to host monthly Authority board 
meetings. Current Lease at 380 Jackson Street, Suite 450 (Cray/Galtier Plaza) ends November 30, 
2022, with a 3-year extension at the option of the Authority. 





enrollment managers who have already spent years stressing about declining birth 

rates and high-school graduation rates- some of the effects of which are already 

visible - should brace for the long haul, said Nanci Tessier, senior vice president at 

the Art & Science Group, a higher-education consulting firm. 

"What's clear is that the years ahead are not going to be any easier," said Tessier, who 

has worked as a chief enrollment officer at three institutions. "It's just going to be 

more and more challenging for colleges and universities to be able to fill their seats." 

FROM THE CHRONICLE STORE 

REPORT 

The Truth About Student Success 

Myths, Realities, and 30 Practices That Are Working Visit the Store 

Birth rates could drop even further when 2021 data are tabulated, factoring in babies 

conceived during the pandemic, said Nathan D. Grawe, a professor of economics at 

Carleton College whose 2018 book Demographics and the Demand for Higher 

Education awoke many colleges to the coming enrollment threat. (Since Covid-19 

didn't affect day-to-day life in the United States until March 2020, most data from that 

year don't account for the pandemic.) "In some sense, we came by this number 

honestly," Grawe said. "You can't simply dismiss it as, Well, perhaps this is a transient 

effect of of the pandemic," Grawe said. 

Grawe points to a June 2020 P-rojection by Melissa S. Kearney, a nonresident senior 

fellow at the Brookings Institution, and Phillip B. Levine, a professor of economics at 

Wellesley College, of 300,000 to 500,000 fewer U.S. births in 2021 because of the 

pandemic and corresponding economic recession. (Kearney and Levine later wrote 

that the lower end of their range was more likely to be the case.) "If they're right," 

Grawe said, "we're going to look back on this report next year and we're going to say, 

Boy, that was a good time." 



So any college official crossing her fingers that the 2025 enrollment bust is a blip on 

the radar should think again. "We can't be looking at this as something where we just 

need a temporary fix," Grawe said. "We need to be thinking about fundamentally and 

foundationally transforming who we reach through access, but also how well we 

support student success so that we retain the students that we do recruit." 

RECOMMENDED READING 

ATHLETICS 

Northwestern U. 

Cheerleader Sued 

an Athletics 

Official. Now 

Facultyand 

Students Are 

Protesting His 

Promotion. 

An Enduring Challenge 

ADVICE 

WhatWillWeary 

Faculty Members 

NeedPost

Pandemic? 

Demographic data from the 1970s and 1980s offers a useful lesson, said Todd 

Rinehart, president of the National Association for College Admission Counseling. 

Colleges countered low birth and high-school graduation rates by enrolling more 

women, buoying their enrollment numbers despite the demographic shift. 

"That's kind of a page we can steal out of that playbook moving forward," said 

Rinehart, who is also vice chancellor for enrollment at the University of Denver. This 

time around, raising college-going rates for low- and middle-income students, and 

students of color - especially Latina/ o and Black students - will be crucial to 

maintaining enrollment numbers, he said. 

"We didn't just suddenly wake up and have this problem," Rinehart said. "We've had a 

number of years to prepare, we have a number of years to continue to prepare as far 

as changing our campuses, changing even our academic programs to be more 

relevant for these future students." 





leaving questions about how smaller, regional institutions will fare, and whether 

they'll be able to stake out a position in the market that sets them apart from their 

peers. 

That means colleges should shift their focus away from "tactical" measures to increase 

short-term enrollment and onto a more holistic view of the educational experience 

they offer. "If you're not looking hard at what it is that you're offering students, and 

you think you can market your way out of this, you just can't," Tessier said. 

We welcome your thoughts and questions about this article. Please email the editors 

or submit a letter for publication. 

ADMISSIONS & ENROLLMENT 

Megan Zahneis 

Megan Zahneis, a staff reporter for The Chronicle, writes about graduate

student issues and the future of the faculty. Follow her on Twitter at 

@meganzahneis, or email her at megan.zahneis@chronicle.com. 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority
Budget vs. Actuals: FY2021 Budget (original) - FY21 P&L

July 2020 - June 2021

Cash Basis  Thursday, May 6, 2021   1/2

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET REMAINING % OF BUDGET % REMAINING

Income

4010 Annual Fee Income 892,670.11 403,745.38 -488,924.73 221.10 % -121.10 %

4020 Application Fee Income 1,000.00 -1,000.00

Discounts given -556,890.43 556,890.43

Total Income $336,779.68 $403,745.38 $66,965.70 83.41 % 16.59 %

GROSS PROFIT $336,779.68 $403,745.38 $66,965.70 83.41 % 16.59 %

Expenses

6000 Stipends 2,915.00 3,520.00 605.00 82.81 % 17.19 %

6001 Board Travel 2,500.00 2,500.00 100.00 %

6002 Communications 17,704.96 24,064.00 6,359.04 73.57 % 26.43 %

6003 Staff Travel 241.61 6,250.00 6,008.39 3.87 % 96.13 %

6004 Office Rent 44,440.66 48,480.72 4,040.06 91.67 % 8.33 %

6005 Office Supplies 392.14 1,750.00 1,357.86 22.41 % 77.59 %

6006 Repairs 500.00 500.00 100.00 %

6007 Printing Expense 757.05 2,500.00 1,742.95 30.28 % 69.72 %

6008 Periodicals/Memberships 5,354.99 8,000.00 2,645.01 66.94 % 33.06 %

6009 Fiscal Consultant Fees 3,700.00 1,000.00 -2,700.00 370.00 % -270.00 %

6010 Audit Fees 19,125.00 19,125.00 0.00 100.00 % 0.00 %

6012 Legal Fees 25,226.10 52,000.00 26,773.90 48.51 % 51.49 %

6013 Insurance Expense 2,000.00 2,000.00 100.00 %

6015 Miscellaneous Expense 171.00 1,000.00 829.00 17.10 % 82.90 %

6016 Bank Service Charges 2,344.34 3,000.00 655.66 78.14 % 21.86 %

6017 Conference Expenses 2,076.03 5,000.00 2,923.97 41.52 % 58.48 %

6020 Professional Development-STAFF 1,057.00 5,000.00 3,943.00 21.14 % 78.86 %

6021 IT 7,339.14 9,800.00 2,460.86 74.89 % 25.11 %

6023 Postage/Delivery Expense 32.59 275.00 242.41 11.85 % 88.15 %

6100 Salaries 162,892.74 210,000.00 47,107.26 77.57 % 22.43 %

6101 Fringe Benefits 47,703.53 64,000.00 16,296.47 74.54 % 25.46 %

6104 Worker's Compensation 170.00 170.00 0.00 100.00 % 0.00 %

6200 Equipment Leases 5,922.48 6,980.00 1,057.52 84.85 % 15.15 %

Total Expenses $349,566.36 $476,914.72 $127,348.36 73.30 % 26.70 %

NET OPERATING INCOME $ -12,786.68 $ -73,169.34 $ -60,382.66 17.48 % 82.52 %

Other Income

4000 Interest Income 29,547.62 36,000.00 6,452.38 82.08 % 17.92 %

4050 Unrealized Gain/Loss Adjustment on Sale -5,244.39 5,244.39

Total Other Income $24,303.23 $36,000.00 $11,696.77 67.51 % 32.49 %

Other Expenses

Other Miscellaneous Expense 3,346.71 7,500.00 4,153.29 44.62 % 55.38 %

Total Other Expenses $3,346.71 $7,500.00 $4,153.29 44.62 % 55.38 %

NET OTHER INCOME $20,956.52 $28,500.00 $7,543.48 73.53 % 26.47 %

NET INCOME $8,169.84 $ -44,669.34 $ -52,839.18 -18.29 % 118.29 %

MHEFA
Highlight

MHEFA
Highlight

MHEFA
Highlight

MHEFA
Highlight

MHEFA
Highlight

MHEFA
Highlight

MHEFA
Highlight

MHEFA
Highlight



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority
Budget vs. Actuals: FY2021 Budget (original) - FY21 P&L

July 2020 - June 2021

Cash Basis  Thursday, May 6, 2021   2/2

Note
Note, budget to actual run after Rent and Phone billing checks were cut for May. So this budget to actual is as of the end of April, but also 
includes May office rent and phone billing expenses (6004: $4040.06 and 6002-01: $187.26). To truly see April month end, these amounts 
should be removed from the "actual" amounts for those accounts.

MHEFA
Highlight

MHEFA
Highlight


	Mailout List
	Cover Memo
	Agenda
	Minutes of April 21, 2021
	Hamline 2021 Application
	Application Review - North Slope
	Application Memorandum - Fryberger
	Resolution Relating to Application - Fryberger
	FY2021 Proposed Adjusted Budget
	FY2021 Plan of Action Results
	FY2021 Achievement Award Resolution
	FY2022 Proposed Board Meeting Schedule
	FY2022 Proposed Plan of Action
	US Births Future Effect on Higher Education (Chronicle of Higher Education)
	April 2021 Budget vs Actual



